AGENDA

CITY COMMISSION

MONDAY, APRIL 24, 2023
REGULAR MEETING

CITY HALL
HELEN KLEBERG GROVES COMMUNITY ROOM
400 WEST KING AVENUE
5:00 P.M.

Conference Line call: 1 (415) 655-0001 and
when prompted type access code: 126 210 9951 #
OR
Live Videostream: hitp://www.cityofkingsville.com/webex

I. Preliminary Proceedings.
OPEN MEETING
ROVED

APP BY, -~ 7
INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — (Mayor Fugate) P W;’Z///
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S) T gmig;}f/ =L

Regular Meeting April 10, 2023 City Manager

Il. Public Hearing - (Required by Law).’

1. Public hearing on request for a Special Use Permit for

indoor recreational use in C2 (Retail District) at Andrews 1, Lot S '90 A, (Fastenal), also
known as 1911 S. Brahma Blvd., Kingsville, Texas. (Interim Director of Planning &
Development Services).

lll. Reports from Commission & Staff.?

“At this time, the City Commission and Staff will report/update on all committee
assignments which may include but is not limited to the following: Planning & Zoning
Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustments, Historical Board, Housing Authority Board,
Library Board, Health Board, Tourism, Chamber of Commerce, Coastal Bend Council of
Governments, Conner Museum, Keep Kingsville Beautiful, and Texas Municipal
League. Staff reports include the following: Building & Development , Code Enforcement,
Proposed Development Report; Accounting & Finance — Financial & Investment
Information, Investment Report, Quarterly Budget Report, Monthly Financial Reports,
Utilities Billing Update; Police & Fire Department — Grant Update, Police & Fire Reports;
Streets Update; Public Works; Building Maintenance, Construction Updates;, Park
Services - grant(s) update, miscellaneous park projects, Emergency Management,
Administration —Workshop Schedule, Interlocal Agreements, Public Information, Hotel
Occupancy Report, Quiet Zone, SEP, Legislative Update, Proclamations, Health Plan
Update, Tax Increment Zone Presentation, Main Street Downtown, Chapter 59 project,

Page10of3
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
APRIL 24, 2023



Financial Advisor, Wastewater Treatment Plant, Water And Wastewater Rate Study
Presentation. No formal action can be taken on these items at this time.”

IV. Public Comment on Agenda Items.®

V.

VL.

1. Comments on all agenda and non-agenda items.
Consent Agenda
Notice to the Public

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Commission has been
furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been
discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being
discussed separately unless requested by a Commission Member in which event the item
or items will immediately be withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal sequence
after the items not requiring separate discussion have been acted upon. The remaining
items will be adopted by one vote.

CONSENT MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES AND ORDINANCES FROM

PREVIOUS MEETINGS:

(At this point the Commission will vote on all motions, resolutions and ordinances
not removed for individual consideration)

1. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget to accept and expend grant funds from the Coastal Bend Regional
Advisory Council for Fire Department medical supplies. (Fire Chief).

2. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget to accept and expend grant funds from Operation Stonegarden for various
Police Department expenditures. (Police Chief).

3. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget to appropriate funding to cover additional Street Department vehicle
maintenance. (Public Works Director).

REGULAR AGENDA

CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND ORDINANCES:

Items for consideration by Commissioners.*

4. Consider authorizing renewal of All-Risk Property Insurance Coverage for the City
of Kingsville for the period of May 1, 2023, through April 30, 2024, as per consultant’s
recommendation. (Human Resources Director).

5. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the zoning ordinance by granting
a Special Use Permit for indoor recreational use in C2 (Retail District) at Andrews 1,
Lot S '90 A, (Fastenal), also known as 1911 S. Brahma Blvd., Kingsville, Texas;
amending the comprehensive plan to account for any deviations from the existing
comprehensive plan. (Interim Director of Planning & Development Services).

6. Consider accepting donations for the Kingsville Parks Youth Pony League. (Parks
Director).

7. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 budget
to accept and expend Youth Pony League donations for uniforms, equipment, and
umpire and scorekeeper services. (Parks Director).

8. Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter an Intergovernmental
Support Agreement between Naval Air Station Kingsville and the City of Kingsville for

Page2of3
AGENDA - KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
APRIL 24, 2023



road repair and maintenance, lift station maintenance, and solid waste services. (City
Attorney/City Manager).

9. Consider a resolution of the City of Kingsville, Texas finding that AEP Texas Inc.'s
application to amend its Distribution Cost Recovery Factors to increase distribution
rates within the City should be denied; authorizing participation with the cities served
by AEP Texas; authorizing hiring of legal counsel; finding that the City’s reasonable
rate case expenses shall be reimbursed by the company; finding that the meeting at
which this resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law; requiring notice
of this resolution to the company and legal counsel. (City Attorney).

10. Discuss potential Somerset Subdivision layout/plat. (City Manager).
VIl. Adjournment.

No person's comments shall exceed 5 minutes. Cannot be extended by Commission.
No person's comments shall exceed 5 minutes without permission of majority of Commission.

Comments are limited to 3 minutes per person. May be extended or permitted at other times in the
meeting only with 5 affirmative Commission votes. The speaker must identify himself by name and
address.

Items being considered by the Commission for action except citizen's comments to the Mayor and
Commission, no comment at this point without 5 affirmative votes of the Commission.

NOTICE

This City of Kingsville and Community Room are wheelchair accessible and accessible
parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services must
be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary's office at
361/595-8002 or FAX 361/595-8024 or E-Mail mvalenzuela@cityofkingsville.com for further
information. Braille Is Not Available. The City Commission reserves the right to adjourn
into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of
the matters listed above, as authorized by the Texas Government Code, Section 551-071
(Consultation with Attorney), 551-072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551-073
Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551-074 {Personnel Matters), 551.076
(Deliberations about Security Devices), 551-086 (Certain Public Power Utilities:
Competitive Matters), and 551-087 (Economic Development) .

I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that the Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin
board located at City Hall, 400 West King Ave, of the City of Kingsville, Texas, a place convenient
and readily accessible to the general public at all times and said Notice was posted on the
following date and time:

April 20, 2023 at 9:15 A.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding
the schedule time of said meeting.

OO0 Nalunzauale
Mary Valenzuela, TRMC, City Secretary
City of Kingsville, Texas

This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Kingsville City Hall on the
following date and time:

By:
City Secretary’s Office
City of Kingsville, Texas

Page3of3
AGENDA — KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION
APRIL 24, 2023




MINUTES OF PREVIOUS
MEETING(S)



APRIL 10, 2023

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE CITY COMMISSION WAS HELD ON
MONDAY, APRIL 10, 2023, IN THE HELEN KLEBERG GROVES COMMUNITY ROOM, 400
WEST KING AVENUE, KINGSVILLE, TEXAS AT 5:00 P.M.

CITY COMMISSION PRESENT:
Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

Hector Hinojosa, Commissioner
Norma N. Alvarez, Commissioner
Edna Lopez, Commissioner

Ann Marie Torres, Commissioner

CITY STAFF PRESENT:

Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney

Kyle Benson, IT Manager

Derek Williams, IT

Emilio Garcia, Health Director

Deborah Balli, Finance Director

Bill Donnell, Public Works Director

Susan lvy, Parks Director

Mike Mora, Capital Improvements Manager
Diana Gonzales, Human Resources Director
Belinda Tarver, Building Official

Rudy Mora, Engineer

Juan J. Adame, Fire Chief

Ricardo Torres, Chief of Police

Manny Salazar, Economic Development Director
Richard Ortegon, Animal Control Officer
Terry Stroman, Animal Control Officer

I.  Preliminary Proceedings.
OPEN MEETING
Mayor Fugate opened the meeting at 5:00 P.M. with all five Commission members present.

INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -~ (Mayor Fugate)
The invocation was delivered by Ms. Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney, followed by the Pledge of
Allegiance and the Texas Pledge.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING(S)
Regular Meeting March 27, 2023

Motion made by Commissioner Lopez to approve the minutes of March 27, 2023, as
presented, seconded by Commissioner Torres. The motion was passed and
approved by the following vote: Hinojosa, Alvarez, Lopez, Torres, Fugate voting
“FOR”.

Il. Public Hearing - (Required by Law).!
1. None.
lll. Reports from Commission & Staff.?
‘At this time, the City Commission and Staff will report/update on all committee

assignments which may include but is not limited to the following: Planning & Zoning
Commission, Zoning Board of Adjustments, Historical Board, Housing Authority Board,

Page 1 of 7 - APRIL 10, 2023



Library Board, Health Board, Tourism, Chamber of Commerce, Coastal Bend Council of
Governments, Conner Museum, Keep Kingsville Beautiful and Texas Municipal
League. Staff reports include the following: Building & Development, Code Enforcement,
Proposed Development Report, Accounting & Finance — Financial & Investment
Information, Investment Report, Quarterly Budget Report, Monthly Financial Reports,
Utilities Billing Update; Police & Fire Department —~ Grant Update, Police & Fire Reports;
Streets Update; Public Works,; Building Maintenance, Construction Updates; Park
Services - grant(s) update, miscellaneous park projects, Emergency Management,
Administration —Workshop Schedule, Interlocal Agreements, Public Information, Hotel
Occupancy Report, Quiet Zone, SEP, Legislative Update, Proclamations, Health Plan
Update, Tax Increment Zone Presentation, Main Street Downtown, Chapter 59 project,
Financial Advisor, Wastewater Treatment Plant, Water, And Wastewater Rate Study
Presentation. No formal action can be taken on these items at this time.”

Mr. Mark McLaughlin, City Manager, gave a brief update on the demolition of the old
hospital, work has begun and is going well. He also gave an update on the upcoming
travel to Mobile, AL for the USS Kingsville Christening which will take place on April 22,
2023. Mr. McLaughlin further reported that U.S. Congressman Vincente Gonzalez will be
providing a legislative update on Tuesday, April 11, 2023, in the City Hall Community
Room.

Mayor Fugate reported that the city held its Trash Off event on April 15t which had a great
turnout. Lots of citizens brought in their unwanted items as well as any trash they needed
to dispose of. Mayor Fugate further stated that while he drove around picking up unwanted
items for the trash off, he noticed a lot of abandoned vehicles and stray dogs. He further
commented that the city ordinance states that dogs are to be on a leash or behind a fence.
He commented that the city needs to start enforcing the ordinances regarding abandoned
vehicles and stray animals. He would like for staff to focus on those two things. Mayor
Fugate further asked for an update on the demolishing of structures that have been
condemned.

Mr. McLaughlin stated that the Building Official has a couple of them that need to be
demolished, but otherwise, they are on track.

Commissioner Alvarez asked if these were demolitions that had already been approved.
Mr. McLaughlin responded yes.

Commissioner Lopez commented that the property located on 6™ Street and Ailsie needs
to be looked into and possibly considered for condemnation. Mr. McLaughlin responded
that staff would look into this property.

Mr. Manny Salazar, President/CEO of the Chamber of Commerce introduced the new
publisher for the Kingsville Record, Mr. JT Strasner.

Ms. Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney reported that the next city commission meeting is
scheduled for Monday, April 24, 2023, with agenda items due no later than Friday, April
14,

Commissioner Torres gave a brief update on her travel to Austin for Kieberg County Day
at the Capitol. Staff that attended this event in Austin met with Texas Representative JM
Lozano, Senator Morgan LaMantia, and Congressman Vicente Gonzales. She further
stated that Congressman Gonzales is inviting all veterans and their families to a special
ceremony honoring Vietnam War Veteran's Purple Heart Recipients on April 11, 2023, at
1:30 p.m. at the American Legion 99.

Page 2 of 7 - APRIL 10, 2023



IV. Public Comment on Agenda Items.?
1. Comments on all agenda and non-agenda items.

Mrs. Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary read a public comment on behalf of Mr. Brian
Todd, 3401 S. Lamar, Austin, TX 78704. The comment read as followed:

I was recently in town to see my nephew play ball at Dick Kleberg Park. It was my
understanding based on previous conversations with city staff that firearms were not
allowed in the parks in Kingsville and would need to be locked in my truck while visiting.
This is why | was surprised to see several of the city parks employees including
someone who said he was the foreman ("Martin?" maybe) carrying firearms on their
belts. How is it that the city will restrict the rights of citizens in public places, but not
their employees? Why can | carry it in city buildings, but not in the parks? The city
should consider allowing carry by all individuals where allowed by the state rather than
trying to regulate some people, but not others, and some places but not others.

V. Consent Agenda
Notice to the Public

The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Commission has been
furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been
discussed at a previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being
discussed separately unless requested by a Commission Member in which event the item
or items will immediately be withdrawn for individual consideration in its normal sequence
after the items not requiring separate discussion have been acted upon. The remaining
items will be adopted by one vote.

CONSENT MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, AND ORDINANCES FROM
PREVIOUS MEETINGS:

(At this point the Commission will vote on all motions, resolutions, and ordinances
not removed for individual consideration)

Motion made by Commissioner Lopez to approve the consent agenda as
presented, seconded by Commissioner Torres. The motion was passed and
approved by the following vote: Alvarez, Lopez, Torres, Hinojosa, Fugate voting
“FOR”.

1. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year
2022-2023 Budget to accept and expend grant funds from Law Enforcement
Officer standards and Education (LEOSE) for training. (Police Chief).

2. Motion to approve final passage of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year
2022-2023 Budget to appropriate funding for City Attorney salary adjustment.
(Finance Director).

3. Motion to approve a resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
agreement with Donald Hubert Construction Company, Inc. for PRF#23-04
Municipal Building Parking Lot Maintenance Project. (Approved 3/13/23). (City

Engineer).

REGULAR AGENDA
CONSIDERATION OF MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND ORDINANCES:

VI. Items for consideration by Commissioners.*

4. Consider a resolution to authorize the Mayor to execute an Agreement

between the City of Kingsville and the Greater Kingsville Economic Development

Council for Workforce Development Program. (Economic Development Director).
Page 3 of 7 - APRIL 10, 2023




Mr. Manny Salazar, Economic Development Director stated that the Kingsville
Chamber of Commerce, Workforce Solutions Coastal Bend, Coastal Bend College, and
KISD applied for and was granted the first-ever Texas Industry Partnership Grant for
the Coastal Bend. An application was submitted for a Jet Engine Training Program,
which will be housed at KISD Campus and run by Coastal Bend Coliege. This is a
unique grant as public funds cannot be used for it, therefore the Chamber of Commerce
used private funds to cover the grant match of $150,000. In a previous conversation
with the city, it would reimburse the Chamber for those funds. A check was provided
last month so it is now fully funded by both the Chamber and the State.

Mayor Fugate asked if these funds are within the city's budget. Mr. McLaughlin
responded yes; it is ARPA funds.

Commissioner Torres asked when the program would begin. Mr. Salazar responded
that the program would begin in the Fall of 2024. The program will be open to high
school students, in their senior year and anyone who would like to apply for the
program.

Motion made by Commissioner Lopez to approve the resolution to authorize the
Mayor to execute an Agreement between the City of Kingsville and the Greater
Kingsville Economic Development Council for Workforce Development Program,
seconded by Commissioner Torres. The motion was passed and approved by the
following vote: Lopez, Torres, Hinojosa, Alvarez, Fugate voting “FOR”.

5. Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an_ Economic
Development Grant Letter of Commitment between the City of Kingsville and
Claudia Lopez. (for Color My World Kids Academy). (Economic Development

Director).

Mr. Salazar commented that this is the contract for the Economic Development Grant
for Claudia Lopez that was previously approved on November 14", This is for $30,000
with a total project cost of $201,000. This is a new daycare facility that has opened up
on Santa Gertrudis which will create 6 full-time employees and 4 part-time employees.
The cost will cover the cost of furniture. Outdoor equipment, remodeling, and shades
for an outdoor play area for the children.

Motion made by Commissioner Alvarez to approve this resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute an Economic Development Grant Letter of Commitment
between the City of Kingsville and Claudia Lopez. (for Color My World Kids
Academy), seconded by Commissioner Lopez. The motion was passed and
approved by the following vote: Torres, Hinojosa, Alvarez, Lopez, Fugate voting
“FOR”.

6. Consider authorizing use of ARP Funds for Fire Department radio system
improvements. (Purchasing Manager).

Motion made by Commissioner Torres to approve the use of ARP Funds for Fire
Department radio system improvements, seconded by Commissioner Lopez.

Mr. Kyle Benson, IT Manager stated that the radio equipment at the Fire Department
needs some updating. This will approve the installation of the replacement of overhead
paging speakers and amplifier at the Kingsville Fire Department Station 1 as well as
upgrade the existing KPD Eventide recorder to allow for KFD to utilize the system for
call replay and the installation of new equipment for integration between existing radios
and new overhead paging equipment at KFD stations. The total cost is $46,629.48.
This will be provided through three different vendors, VistaCom, American Integrated
Solutions, and Eventide.

Page 4 of 7 - APRIL 10, 2023



Commissioner Torres asked if this would improve communication between the Fire
Department, Police Department, and the community. Mr. Benson responded that this
would improve the quality within the stations.

The motion was passed and approved by the following vote: Hinojosa, Alvarez,
Lopez, Torres, Fugate voting “FOR”.

7. Consider authorizing use of ARP Funds for security camera system
upgrades. (Purchasing Manager).

Mr. Benson stated that with the incoming statue as well as Chamberlain Park, there is
a need for some additional cameras for City Hall. There is also a need for better security
at the Municipal Building parking lot and employee parking. The current system is no
longer compliant with the National Defense Authorization Act as of FY 23; therefore, it
is required to be replaced.

Motion made by Commissioner Lopez to authorize the use of ARP Funds for
security camera system upgrades, seconded by Commissioner Torres and
Commissioner Hinojosa. The motion was passed and approved by the following
vote: Alvarez, Lopez, Torres, Hinojosa, Fugate voting "FOR".

8. Consider awarding security camera system upgrades to American Integrated
Solutions via GoodBuy purchasing cooperative as per staff recommendation.
(Purchasing Manager).

Mr. Benson stated that American Integrated Solutions has been used for several
building security projects such as the access control to this building. Staff would like to
use the same company for the video recording system as well. The company sells a
product line that will bring the system up to compliance with the National Defense
Authorization Act as well as with the existing security within the building. American
Integrated Solutions is part of GoodBuy Purchasing Cooperative Contract #22-23-
7A000 22.

Motion made by Commissioner Alvarez to approve the award of security camera
system upgrades to American Integrated Solutions via GoodBuy purchasing
cooperative as per staff recommendation, seconded by Commissioner Lopez.
The motion was passed and approved by the following vote: Lopez, Torres,
Hinojosa, Alvarez, Fugate voting “FOR”.

9. Consider authorizing use of ARP Funds for a Parks Department payment
kiosk at Brookshire Pool. (Purchasing Manager).

Mr. Benson stated that the purchase and installation of a payment kiosk at Brookshire
Pool is to eliminate the need for cash handling by staff and to allow for card payment
options for pool-related fees. The kiosk will be provided by AdComp Systems Group of
Lewisville, TX. This is the same entity that provided the existing kiosk located at the
Municipal Building.

Motion made by Commissioner Lopez to authorize the use of ARP Funds for a
Parks Department payment kiosk at Brookshire Pool, seconded by
Commissioner Alvarez. The motion was passed and approved by the following
vote: Torres, Hinojosa, Alvarez, Lopez, Fugate voting “FOR”.

10. Consider accepting a donation from the Coastal Bend Regional Advisory
Council for Fire Department emergency medical supplies. (Fire Chief).

Mr. J.J. Adame, Fire Chief stated that each year the Coastal Bend Regional Advisory
Council distributes funds to emergency medical services departments based on t eh

Page 5 of 7 - APRIL 10, 2023



number of EMS calls. The council has granted the Kingsville Fire Department an
amount of $6,121.00 for medical supplies.

Motion made by Commissioner Torres to accept the donation from the Coastal
Bend Regional Advisory Council for Fire Department emergency medical
supplies, seconded by Commissioner Lopez. The motion was passed and
approved by the following vote: Hinojosa, Alvarez, Lopez, Torres, Fugate voting
“FOR”.

11. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-2023
budget to accept and expend grant funds from the Coastal Bend Regional
Advisory Council for Fire Department medical supplies. (Fire Chief).

Introduction item.

12. Consider a resolution applying for and accepting funds for Operation
Stonegarden Grant #3194308 with the Homeland Security Grants Division of the
Governor's Office for border security to interdict criminal activity with no
anticipated cash match; authorizing the Kingsville Chief of Police to act on the
City’s behalf with such program. (Police Chief).

Mr. Ricardo Torres, Chief of Police stated that this is a recurring grant where the police
department gets the overtime funds and additional equipment. This year the amount is
$212,372.00. He further stated that in the award letter, they have mistakenly placed
$65,452.00 under the Sheriff's Office. He stated that there is a frag order going through
the Border Patrol to make sure the correction is made where that amount of money is
given to the police department, which could take a few weeks to be corrected.

Motion made by Commissioner Torres to approve the resolution applying for and
accepting funds for Operation Stonegarden Grant #3194308 with the Homeland
Security Grants Division of the Governor’s Office for border security to interdict
criminal activity with no anticipated cash match; authorizing the Kingsville Chief
of Police to act on the City’s behalf with such program, seconded by
Commissioner Lopez. The motion was passed and approved by the following
vote: Alvarez, Lopez, Torres, Hinojosa, Fugate voting “FOR”.

13. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-2023
budget to accept and expend grant funds from Operation Stonegarden for
various Police Department expenditures. (Police Chief).

Introduction item.

14. Consider introduction of an ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2022-2023
budget to appropriate funding to cover additional Street Department vehicle
maintenance. (Public Works Director).

Mr. Bill Donnell, Public Works Director, stated that the Street Department and Garage
Department have tried to keep maintenance and repair costs within budget. The cost
of parts and outsourced mechanic labor is very expensive. Repairs range from $5,000
to $9,000. The division has currently spent $56,375 for repairs on these units. Mr.
Donnell stated that an additional $35,000 is what is needed to be able to complete the
fiscal year.

Mayor Fugate asked how the street equipment was holding up. Mr. Donnell responded
that there have been some hydraulic leaks on the maintainer that need to be repaired.

Commissioner Torres asked if the city was not receiving any applications for
maintenance workers.

Mr. Donnell responded that it is a difficult position to fill with qualified certifications.
Page 6 of 7 - APRIL 10, 2023



Commissioner Torres further asked who is maintaining city vehicles now.

Mr. Donnell stated that there is one employee out on injury with another on light duty
so there is the supervisor who is also a mechanic who installed the engine on a Health
Department vehicle. There is also the Lead Tech employee and the Maintenance
Technician, which makes two functioning Maintenance Technicians and supervisors
who are doing the mechanical work.

Commissioner Torres asked if it would help to add additional mechanic positions.

Mr. Donnell stated that the staff that is there now is doing the best they can in and doing
a great job in keeping up with the maintenance of city vehicles. There will be some
outsourcing that is not able to be taken care of in-house.

Mr. McLaughlin commented that the city has a sizable maintenance budget, but some
of the items are bigger breaks that were not anticipated. Staff has already taken a step
ahead at looking replacement equipment for the future.

Iintroduction item.
Mayor Fugate read and presented a proclamation for Animal Control Officers Week at
this time.

VL. Adjournment.

There being no further business to come before the City Commission, the meeting was
adjourned at 5:37 P.M.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, TRMC, CMC, City Secretary

Page 7 of 7 - APRIL 10, 2023



PUBLIC HEARING(S)



PUBLIC HEARING #1



Planning and Development Services
410 W King

Kingsville, TX 78363

PH: 361-595-8093

MEMO

Date: April 19, 2023

To: Mayor and City Commissioners

From: Kobby Agyekum (Interim Director of Planning and Development Services)

Subject: Jacob Carmona, Applicant; requesting a Special Use Permit for Indoor Recreational Use in
C2 (Retail) at ANDREWS 1, LOT S ’90 A, (FASTENAL) also known as 1911 S. Brahma
Blvd., Kingsville, TX.

The Planning and Zoning Commission meeting was held as scheduled this evening, April 19, 2023, with 4
members in attendance.

Members deliberated over the issue of granting approval for a replat Special Use Permit for Indoor
Recreational Use in C2 (Retail) at ANDREWS 1, LOT S ’90 A, (FASTENAL) also known as 1911 S.
Brahma Blvd., Kingsville, Texas to establish an indoor recreation facility. Letters were sent out to neighbors
and the City received no feedback. Commissioners, after deliberations, voted to approve the recommendation to
establish indoor recreation, the said property which is C2 (Retail). A recorded vote of all members present was
taken and Commissioners Steve Zamora, Larry Garcia, Rev. Idotha Battle and Debbie Tiffee. All agenda items
were voted ‘YES’.

The meeting was adjourned by about 6:15pm

Thank you.

iyl

Kobby Agyekum
Interim Director of Planning and
Development Services



Planning and Development Services
410 W King

Kingsville, TX 78363

PH: 361-595-8093

MEMO

Date: April 9, 2023

To: Planning and Zoning Commission Members

From: Kobby Agyekum (Interim Director of Planning and Development Services)

Subject: Jacob Carmona, Applicant; requesting a Special Use Permit for Indoor Recreational Use in
C2 (Retail) at ANDREWS 1, LOT S ’90 A, (FASTENAL) also known as 1911 S. Brahma
Blvd., Kingsville, TX.

The applicant approached the department because they wanted to use the existing property for indoor
recreational use. The proposal as presented to the department would involve creating recreatlonal activities to
serve the City of Kingsville. The property is currently zoned C2 — Retail.

Consequently, this application is being submitted for your consideration. The department has reviewed the
application and has found no adverse impact on the environment and the development complies with the
relevant codes and Ordinances but requires a “Special Use” permit. Therefore, it is recommended that you
consider the said application and approve same since this will improve internet use within the city of Kingsville.

Thank you.

Kobby Agyekum
Interim Director of Planning and
Development Services



CITY OF KINGSVILLE
PLANNING AND ZONING DIVISION
MASTER APPLICATION

PROPERTY INFORMATION: (Please PRINT or TYPE)

Project Address | UL\ & Brelh wvia Rlved  Nearest Intersection

}
(Proposed) Subdivision Name__ \Aolve wg tot_< 90 o Block

Legal Description:___\Mnchvawd A s} 90 W Fastaie |

Existing Zoning Designation __ € - Future Land Use Plan Designation _Sta®

OWNER/APPLICANT INFORMATION: (Please PRINT or TYPE)

Applicant/Authorized Agent _Jwecoly  Cran wmsine Phone( 3% 1)228- (074 pax

Email Address {for project correspondence only): Tedd 5.0 ) Gwmal) . caim

Mailing Address 22> )2 WMol wooo| City )GMS\ ALY State _7< ZipZd3e3

Property Owner |27 vnan OWlenbeacA  Phone(3te!) 592-372° pax

Email Address (for project correspondence only): _ V1 /4

Mailing Address (ool W12 X 20 Ui city__Fing s\t e State_ 7L Zip743¢63

Select appropriate process for which approval is sought. Attach completed checklists with this application.

__Annexation Request No Fee __Preliminary Plat Fee Varies
__Administrative Appeal (ZBA) $250.00 __Final Plat, Fee Varies
__Comp. Plan Amendment Request $250.00 __Minor Plat, $100.00
__Re-zoning Request $250.00 __Re-plat $250.00
UP Request/Renewal $250.00 __Vacating Plat $50.00
__Zoning Variance Request (ZBA) $250.00 __Development Plat $100.00
___PUD Request, $250.00 __Subdivision Variance Request $25.00 ea

Please provide a basic description of the proposed project:
W LEe o ol Tosdh betbing bessbelt/sobt o] Lycil; by
fo M wblle ol codadls.

I hereby certify that | am the owner and /or duly authorized agent of the owner for the purposes of this
application. | further certify that | have read and examined this application and know the same to be
true and correct. If any of the information provided on this application is incorrect the permit or
approval may be re

Date:_ ()3~ §-2627
Date:

Date: B-/7 202

Applicant’s Signature
Property Owner's & g atupes ,
Accepted by:__ AM,.._»W .




ZUUJT Buffer at 1911 5 Brahma Blvd

422

11611
. 23999
Sy Cendey )
Ban
el \
S E-AilsieAve- \
/ 3
P~
¥
Noacdoned @
Cenvenénce
XA 18239 E
Apectone ot
Compler T
Qe
19008 z
; 20305
(\7\{(‘(\ |
|
\\\\ 10502 ;
‘_*,_4—/’4
r 2
Legend
1911 S Brahma Blvd
f i 1911 S Brahma Blvd Buffer
e 25719
0 50 100 200
E:] Ownership e————— T
g 1 1 1
. » R DISGLAIMER)
Drawn By: G. AMAYA THIS MAP 18 FOR VISUAL PURPOSES GNLY, CI TY OF KINGSVILLE
o 2@2‘5‘6?&3@&%’&2&%&’%& 25%5@9* CITY F v ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
Moo BT
ate: HE i N . e -
=R Last Update: 3/17/2023 %ég;,&a;?é mﬁ:\ﬁfgﬁzﬁxﬁ;% Iﬁﬂ Vﬂl@ 400 W Kirig Ave; Kingsville, TX 78563
Note: Ownerahip s fabeled BESION) CONSTHUBTION, PLARNING, SOl DING, R Offiee: (361) 595-8007
with thelr PROP 1D's dhid 2o Codld, ORANY DTHER PURROBE,

Fax: (361) 695-8064




Kingsville Retail Group, LP
Todd Routh
11701 Bee Caves Road, STE 262
Austin, TX 78738
#11611

Harbur & Harbur LP
Robert W Hartman
3279 FM 1540
Sandia, TX 78383
#18239

CAK Kingsville LLC
25047 Toutant Beauregard RD
San Antonio, TX 78255
#19008

McAllen Baptist Temple
2001 W Trenton RD
McAllen, TX 78504
#20305

Michael J Krueger
PO Box 1538
Kingsville, TX 78364
#10502



Account

Property ID: 18861

Geographic ID: 103000001001192
Type: Real

Property Use Code:
Property Use Description:

Location
Address: 1911 S BRAHMA BLVD
TX
Neighborhood:
Neighborhood CD:
Owner
Name: OHLENBUSCH HERMAN H

Mailing Address:

926 S 14TH ST, STE 103

KINGSVILLE, TX 78363

(+) Improvement Homesite Value:
(+) Improvement Non-Homesite Value:
(+) Land Homesite Value:

{(+) Land Non-Homesite Value:

(+) Agricultural Market Valuation:

(+) Timber Market Valuation:

(=) Market Value:

{(~) Ag or Timber Use Value Reduction:

(=) Appraised Value:
(~) HS Cap:

(=) Assessed Value:

o+ 4+ 4+ 4+ o+

I}

Venr 2023 - Values not available

Legal Description: ANDREWS 1, LOT S 90' A, (FASTENAL)
Zoning: Cc2

Agent Code:

Mapsco:

Map ID: A3

Owner iD: 30455

% Ownership: 100.0000000000%

Exemptions:

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Ag / Timber Use Value
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

0 T e K



3/27/23, 12:55 PM Kleberg CAD - Property Details

Owner: OHLENBUSCH HERMAN H
% Ownership: 100.0000000000%
Total Value:  N/A

Entity Description Tax Rate Appraised Value Taxable Value Estimated Tax

GKL KLEBERG COUNTY N/A N/A , N/A N/A
Total Tax Rate: N/A

Taxes w/Current Exemptions: N/A

Taxes w/o Exemptions: N/A

Improvement #1: COMMERCIAL State Code: F1 Living Area: 5000.0 sqft Value: N/A

Class Exterior Year

Type Description cD Wall Built SQFT

MA  MAIN AREA RS2L EW4 1973 4000.0
ASP  ASPHALT (100%) * 2000 7980.0
MA  MAIN AREA WH2L 1973 1000.0

# Type Description Acres Sqft Eff Front Eff Depth Market Value Prod. Value
1 F1 F1 0.3616 15750.00 90.00 175.00 N/A N/A,

Year Improvements Land Market Ag Valuation Appraised HS Cap Assessed
2023 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2022 $78,030 $47,250 0 125,280 S0 $125,280
2021 $86,230 $47,250 0 133,480 S0 $133,480
2020 $36,120 $23,625 0 59,745 S0 $59,745
2019 $35,945 $23,625 0 59,570 S0 $59,570
2018 $35,220 $23,625 0 58,845 SO 558,845
2017 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 SO $60,155
2016 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 SO $60,155
2015 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155
2014 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 SO $60,155
2013 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155
2012 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155 ‘
2011 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155
2010 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155
2009 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155 |

hitps:/forapaceess: rusaiiomation. comfsliantdb/Prasart dsns?nmp iH=21RR61 Laid=24 1!



Apsy 6 2023

& PUBLIC NOTICES N | PUBLIC NOTICES ] PUBLIC NOTICES by PUBLIC NOTICES & | PUBLIC NOTICES 8 FUBLIC NOTICES

AWGY
6

Notlee is hereby given that the awtomatic rabulating equipraent that witl be used in the Ricardo hdependent
School District Bond Election scheduled for Tuesday. May 6, 2023 will be tested on Wednesda ay . April 12,
2023 a1 8:30 a.m. by the Ci Office @ the Rosa Galvan Aguilar Ext. Bldg. focated at 729 B
Yoakum Avenue Street in }\mgs\ itle, 1o aseertin that it will accurately count the votes cast for all offices and
onall measures.

/s Salvador Sonny Burrera 1
Salvador Sonny Barrera HE. Kleberg County Clerk

AVISO PUBLICO DE PRUR
EQUIPO DE TABULACION

Por la presente se notitica que ¢l equipo de tabulacion automitica que se wtilizard en la Eleccion Geneal ¥
Espuml estd programade para ¢f Sdbado 6 de Mayo de 2023 serd probado ¢ midreoles 12 dg Abril de 2023 «
las 8:30 a.m. por la Oficina del Secretaria del Condado en el Edificio Rosa Gulvan Aguilar Ext. ubicado en 729
E. Yoakum Avenue Street en Kingsville, para asegurarse de que contard con precision fos votos emitidos para

Application has been
made with Texas Alcohol-
ic B C

ises Permit by Patel &
Thakor, LLC. dba Beto's

for Wine and Beer Retail.
er's permit and a Food
and Beverage Certificate
{FB) by AC Cafe Corpo-
ration DBA Freddy’s Cafe
at §372 US-77 Kingsviile,
Texas 78363, Kleberg

Ci Meat Market,
to be located at 1102 E.
Yoakum Ave. Kingsville,
Kleberg County, Texas
78363, Officers of said
LLC are Ram Thakor and
Suman Dave, Managers.

County. President and Application has been
Manager and Secretary of made with the Texas Al-
sald corporation is Jose holic B ge Com-
Garnica. mission for a Mixed
oo Beverage by Domingo
Application has been Pinon Reyna Jr, dba
made with Texas Alcohol- Double 7 Management
ic B to be | d at 1414 N

for Wina and Mait Bever-
age Retailer's Off-Prem-

14th Street, Kingsville,
Kieberg County, Toxas.

“dreamhome’

g tory
Look no further.

The Classiffeds has the latest listings
of homes and propertics for sale.

Classifieds

www.kingsvillerecord.com

; PUBLIC NOTICES o | PUBLIC NOTIGES S PUBLIC NOTICES S PUBLIC NOTICES ] PUBLIC NOTICES ] 1 PUBLIC NOTICES

PUBLIC NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ)
KINGSVILLE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

todos fos cargos v en wdas las medidas,

s Salvador Senny Bamera HL
Satvador Sonny Barrera Hi, }\luhcrg ¢ mml\ Clerk

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
The Planning & Zoning C: of the City of Kingsville will hold a Public Hearing
Wednesday, April 19, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. wherein the Commission will discuss and/
or take action on the following Items and at which time all inlerested persons will be
heard:
Jacob C a Speclal Use Permit for Indoor Recre-
ationat Use In C2 (Retall) at ANDREWS 1, LOT §'90 A, {FASTENAL) also known
as 1911 8. Brahma Blvd., Kingsvitle, TX.

Kingsville Independent Schoui District {“Kingsville 1SD") will receive sealed written
RFQ proposals for contracted Occupational Therapy services at the Administration
Building, 207 N. 3rd 5t,, Kingsville, Texas 78363, until 2:00 PM on Thursday, Aprt}
20th from interested providers. An RFQ Packet containing instructions for this
process will be available in the Administration Building, 207 N. 3rd St.. Kingsville,
Texas 78363, during regular business hours and at KingsvillelSD.com. All potential
bidders are encouraged to request a Bid Packet to ensure bidders are familiar with the
bid requirernents. Sealed bids must be marked: “REQ ~ OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY
SERVICES.” Submissions not received by the deadline specified herein and that do
not comply with the RFQ requi will not be considered. All inquiries should
be directed to Dr. Peter Pitts, Chief Financial Officer, at (361) 592-3387. Kingsville
18D reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals submitted in the school
district’s best interest.

The meeting will be held at City Half, 400 Wesl King. in the Helen Kleberg Groves
Community Room. f you have any questions about the items on the agenda, please
contact the Planning Department at (361) 595-8055.

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
The City Commission of the City of Kingsville will hold a Public Hearing Monday, April
24, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. wherein the City Commission will discuss the conslderation of
the following itern and at which time all interested parsons will be heard:
Jacob Carmona, Applicant; requesting a Special Use Permit for indoor Recre-
ational Use in C2 {Retall) at ANDREWS 1, LOT S '90 A, (FASTENAL) also known
as 1911 §. Brahma Bivd,, Kingsvlite, TX.

The meeting will be held at City Hall, 400 West King, Kingsvilla, Texas in the Halen
Kleberg Groves Community Room. If you have any questions about the items on the

agenda, please confact the City Secretary at (361) 535-8002.

Riviera ISD is accepting bids for a van, Please see https://www.rivieraisd.

us/o/riviera/page/request-for-proposals for the Request for Proposal
documents and mail all sealed bids to Riviera ISD 203 Seahawk Drive
Riviera, Tx 78379.

& | PUBLIC NOTICES & | PuBLIC NOTICES & | pustic NOTICES

Bishop CISD will hold a public hearing during it’s regular school
board meeting on Monday, April 24, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. in the Luehrs
Junior High School Badger Den located at 717 E. 6th Street,
Bishop, Texas. The purpose of the public hearing is to present the
Texas Academic Performance Reports (TAPR) which combines
details of district and campus academic performance with financial
reports and information about staff, programs and demographics.

| PUBLIC NOTICES b ‘ PUBLIC NOTICES 8 : PUBLIC NOTICES

PUBLIC NOTICE
KLEBERG COUNTY
HAZARD MITIGATION

Kleberg County will have an anline survey from Aprit 6th to April 20th, in order to
gather information for their Hazard Mitigation Plan. Kieberg County and the partic-
ipating jurisdictions encourage residents to take the survey online at the County' s
website. The survey’ s goal is to record public input for the plan draft. Discussion will
include identifying natural hazards and hazard-related challenges facing the County in
order to begin developing a plan to preserve strengths, resolve weaknesses, and meat
future mitigation goals. If there are any questions about the plan or survey, please call
the County at (361) 595-8585.

TexSCAN Week of
April 2-8, 2023

ACREAGE

LAND FOR SALE. Hunting, recreational, retirement.
Hill Country, Trans Pecos regions in South Texas.
30-year fixed rate, owner financing, 5% dow
www.ranchenterptiscsitd.com. 800-876-9720.

ARROWHEADS

INDIAN ARROWHEADS WANTED. Point Type:

Clovis, Yuma, Firstview & Eden. Must be old, authentic
& unbroken. Absolute top dollar paid —up to 5 figures
for onc point. | am a very serious high-¢nd collector,
Call 979-218-3351,

Want o lease on arca (small acreage) to find Indian
arcowheads in the sand duncs of West Texas, | will
pay up 0 five figures for the right property. Call
979-218-3351.

AUCTION

Absolute Pubtic Online Auction - Laredo, Texas.
9 am., Fri. April 14, 2023. 1768 FM 3338. 450+
conventional traciors, vans & more. $00-654-8240,
wivw.taylorandmartin.com.

EVENTS

New Braunfels Area Car Club Swap Mect, Agril
21, 22 & 23, 2023. Comal County Fairgrounds
ROl E. Common Street, New Braunfels.
www.newbraunfelsareacarclub.com, Free fo public.
Gates open at R atn,

Texas Ladles State Chili Championship Cook-
off, Sat., April 15th 10 a.m.-9 p.m., Max Starcke
Park East. Chili, Crafl and Food Vendors, Music,
Silent Auction, Rafflcs, Family Fun! Judping
begins at 12:30 p.m. Sign up to be a chili cook,
hl\ps //\-.mw tIscco.com/registration.html,

Jubscvibers ) ike

¢ VjOU
Make the Di

rence

com, 830-401-5000.

GENERATORS

Prepare for power outages today with 3 GENERAC
home standby generator. $O Money Down + Low
Monthly Paymens Opiions. Requesta FREE Quote, Call
now before the next power outage: 1-855-704-8579,

y LEGAL ASSISTANCE

Applying for Social Security Disability or Appealing
a Denied Claim? Call Bill Gordon & Assoc. Our
case managers simplify the process & work hard o
help with your case. Call 1-844-494-0689 FREE
Consultation. Local Attorneys Nationwide Mail: 2420
N $1 NW, Washington DC. Office: Broward Co. FL
(TX/NM Bar)

MEDICAL

Portable Oxygen Concentrator May Be Cavered
by Medicare! Reclaim independence and mobitity
with the compact design and long-lasting bat.
tety of Inogen One, Froe information kit! Call
866-747-99R1.

DENTAL INSURANCE from Physicians Mutuat
Insurance Company. Coverage for 350 phus procedurcs.
Reaf dental insurance - NOT just a discount plan. Doniot
waitt Calt now! Get your FREE Dental Information Kit
with all the details! 1-855-901-0467 www dentalS0plus.
com/txpress #6258

WANTED

Need Extra Cash - T Buy RVs & Mobile Homes
~Travel Trsilers, Sth Wheels, Goosenecks, Bumper
Pulls. In Any Ara, Any Condition — Old/New, Dirty
or Clean! [ PAY CASH. No Thle - No Problem, we
can apply for one. We go anywhere in Texas, ANR
Enerpriscs, 956-466-7001.

Texas Press Statewide Classified Network
221 Participating Texas Newspapers « Regional Ads

Start At $250 » Email ads@texaspress.com

NOTICE: Whik most sds

arc reputable.

products or services advertised. We

ufize readers 10 use caution and when in doubt, contact the Texas Attomey General at 800-621-0508 or the
Fedeeal Trade Commission al $77-FTC-HELP. The FTC web sife is www.lc.gov/bizep.




ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE BY GRANTING A SPECIAL USE
PERMIT FOR INDOOR RECREATIONAL USE IN C2 (RETAIL DISTRICT)
AT ANDREWS 1, LOT S'90 A, (FASTENAL), ALSO KNOWN AS 1911 S.
BRAHMA BLVD., KINGSVILLE, TEXAS; AMENDING THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO ACCOUNT FOR ANY DEVIATIONS FROM
THE EXISTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR
PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission has forwarded to the City Commission it's
reports and recommendations concerning the application of Jacob Carmona, applicant on
behalf of owner Herman Ohlenbusch, for amendment to the zoning map of the City of
Kingsuville;

WHEREAS, the property is currently zoned C2-Retail District and it is desired for the area
to be used as an indoor batting facility;

WHEREAS, the City Code of Ordinances, Chapter XV-Land Usage, Appendix A- Land Use
Categories states that in C2 a special use permit is required to have an indoor recreational
use (indoor batting facility); and

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville Code of Ordinances section 15-6-142 regulates special
use permits; and

WHEREAS, with proper notice to the public, public hearings were held on Wednesday,
April 19, 2023, during a meeting of the Planning & Zoning Commission, and on Monday,
April 24, 2023, during a meeting of the City Commission, in the Helen Kleberg Groves
Community Room/Commission Chambers, at City Hall, in the City of Kingsville, during
which all interested persons were allowed to appear and be heard; and

WHEREAS, a majority of the Planning & Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to APPROVE, with
no abstentions, the requested special use permit; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that this amendment would best serve
public health, necessity, and convenience and the general welfare of the City of Kingsville
and its citizens.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
KINGSVILLE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Kingsville, Texas, is amended and a
Special Use Permit is granted for an Indoor Recreational Facility (indoor batting facility) on



the premises known as 1911 S. Brahma Blvd., Kingsville, Texas, (Andrews 1, Lot S'90 A,
(Fastenal)), as more specifically describe on site plan attached as Exhibit A.

SECTION 2. That the Special Use Permit granted in Section 1 of this Ordinance is subject
the following conditions:

1. ALLOWED USE: The only uses authorized by this Special Permit other than the
permitted “C2” Retail District use is as an Indoor Recreational use (indoor batting facility).

2. STATE LICENSE: The premises or operator will be licensed or registered by the
State of Texas, if needed, to have such a business. '

3. TIME LIMIT: This Special Permit is good for the duration of the business from the
date of this ordinance unless the property is not being used for the purpose outlined in
Condition 1 or any other conditions have not been complied with.

4. SPECIAL CONDITION: The applicant shall obtain all required background checks
and business licenses. The applicant shall also cooperate with all annual fire safety, health,
and sanitation inspections, as required by the City of Kingsville and any other state agency,
and comply with any other laws or regulations regarding such business in order to maintain
compliance with state and city regulations for the indoor batting facility.

SECTION 3. That the official Zoning Map of the City of Kingsville, Texas, is amended to
reflect the amendment to the Zoning Ordinance made by Section 1 of this ordinance.

SECTION 4. That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Kingsville, Texas,
as amended from time to time, except as changed by this ordinance and any other
ordinances adopted on this date, remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 5. That to the extent that this amendment to the Zoning Ordinance represents a
deviation from the Comprehensive Plan, the Comprehensive Plan is amended to conform
to the Zoning Ordinance, as amended by this ordinance.

SECTION 6. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are
hereby expressly repealed.

SECTION 7. That publication shall be made in the official publication of the City of
Kingsville as required by the City Charter of the City of Kingsville.

INTRODUCED on this the 24th _ day of April, 2023.
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the __8th _dayof __ May , 2023.

Effective Date: , 2023




THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



ZUUJT Bujjer at 1Y11 > Branma Blvd

Drawn By: G, AMAYA

ot
s
foud

~a8ey

Last Update: 3/17/2023

Note! Ownarship is labeled

with thalr PROP ID's and Zone Code.

THIS MAP IS FOR VISUAL PFURPOSES ONLY,
THE INFORMATION ON THIS SHEET MAY
CONTAIN INACCURACIES OR ERRORS.

TH/E CITY OF KINGSVILLE 18 NOT
RESPONSIBLE IF THE INFORMATION
_ CONTAINED HEREIN 18 USED FOR ANY
DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, FLANNING, BUILDING,
OR ANY DTHER PURPOSE,

Kin

422 ?
KL
5
=
11611
23998
EAilsieAve- - \
5
<
\ E
7]
18239
19008
20305
10502
/
-
Legend
1911 S Brahma Bivd
[_] 1911 s Brahma Bivd Buffer
e Streels 2718
_ 0 50 100 200
[ ownership e Er—— oot
h ) L 1 I
DISCLAIMER:

> CITY OF KINGSVILLE
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
ille 400 W King Ave; Kingsville, TX 78363
Y Office: (361) 595-8007

A adT Fax: (361) 595-8084

ATy
3 b




CONSENT AGENDA



AGENDA ITEM #1



Budgar Fm

S

City of Kingsville
Department Name

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Juan J. Adame, Fire Chief
DATE: March 24, 2023

SUBJECT: Fire Department Budget Amendment

Summary:

The Kingsville Fire Department is requesting approval to amend the FY 22-23 budget to carry-

over surplus funds from a grant from the Coastal Bend Regional Advisory Council (CBRAC) in the
amount of $6,121.00.

Background:

Each year CBAC distributes funds to emergency medical services departments based on the
number of EMS calls.

Financial Impact:
No financial impact. This grant will be used to purchase medical equipment and supplies.

Recommendation:
Approve the carryover of surplus funds from the CBRAC grant in the amount of $6,121.00.




AMERICAN BANK 708 2

800-257-8316
www.amerlcanbank.com §8-328/1148
COASTAL BEND REGIONAL o
ADVISORY COUNGCIL RS
PO BOX 18460
CORPUS CHRISTI TX 78480

03/16/2023
PAY TO THE i inasville Fi .
ORDER OF City of Kingsville Fire Dept | $ 6,121.00
Six thousand one hundred twenty-one and (0/1(0* +H+rrsssssrsxirtesrmnttirns anbxsknsbrrbbsksbbrkRR RIS KR EERERR IS DOLLARS
City of Kingsville Fire Dept Two Signatures Required ¢
Attn: Chief Adame ¥ er 90 Days

=

%,

119 N. 10th St.

i
Kingsville, TX 78363 '

MEMO
FY23 EMS County Grant - Kleberg County

OO 708 2 12— NN
, 7082
03/16/2023 City of Kingsville Fire Dept
Date Type Reference Original Amount Balance Due Payment
03/16/2023 Bill FY23 EMS CTY 6,121.00 6,121.00 6,121.00
Check Amount 6,121.00
RAC-Primary FY23 EMS County Grant - Kieberg County 6,121.00




ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET TO ACCEPT AND
EXPEND GRANT FUNDS FROM THE COASTAL BEND REGIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL
FOR FIRE DEPARTMENT MEDICAL SUPPLIES.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#39

Dept Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

Fund 027 - EMS Fund

Revenues

2200 | Fire State Grants 72010 $6,121

Expenditures

2200 | Fire Medical Supplies 22400 $6,121

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 22-23 budget to accept and expend grants funds from the
Coastal Bend Regional Advisory Council for medical supplies. Funding will come from the
grant funding for this purpose ]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

Hl.
THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of

competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission

1



that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 10th day of April 2023.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the day of April 2023.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #2



Dudggs Pomerd

City of Kingsville
Police Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
CC: Mark MclLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Ricardo Torres, Chief of Police
DATE: March 24, 2023

SUBIJECT: Operation Stonegarden, OPSG FY22 Grant#3194308

Summary:

The Kingsville Police Department has been invited to participate and additional year of OPSG and has been

conditionally approved for participation during performance period beginning 04/01/2023 and ending
02/29/2024.

Background:

Kleberg County and identified Friendly Forces will participate in Operation Stonegarden (OPSG) for
Funding Year 2023. The participating agencies will utilize OPSG funding to enhance enforcement efforts
along ingress/egress routes leading from the U.S./Mexico border and into the interior of the United States.
OPSG funding will be used for the essential capability enhancement of participating agencies to coordinate

operations with the U.S. Border Patrol to support border security efforts within the Rio Grande Valley
Border Patrol Sector.

Financial Impact:
The grant for “Operation Stonegarden” is a reimbursement type but does not require any cash match.
We have been approved $96,300.00 in overtime, $1,120.00 for grant management, $15,500.00 in fringe

benefits, $24,000.00 for thermal imagers, $10,000.00 to cover fuel costs. And $65,452.00 for the purchase
of an almost fully outfitted police unit.

Our total allotment is $212,372.00

Recommendation:

We would request a resolution approving the acceptance of this grant via the Office of the Governor
eGrants portal by the grantee’s authorized official as designated by the City Manager, Chief Ricardo
Torres. We also request a budget amendment to the current FY 2022-2023 for use of the funds as soon

as they are available. Please place this on the next available agenda. Thank you for your assistance
regarding this matter.




ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET TO ACCEPT AND
EXPEND GRANT FUNDS FROM OPERATION STONEGARDEN FOR VARIOUS POLICE
DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURES.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#40

Dept Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease

Fund 016 — Stonegarden Grant

Revenues

2100 | Police Federal Grants 72005 $212,372

Expenditures

2100 | Police Overtime 11227 $96,300

2100 | Police TMRS 11427 $8,100

2100 | Police FICA 11528 $7,400

2100 | Police Motor Gas & QOil 21500 $10,000

2100 | Police Professional Services 31400 $1,120

2100 | Police Machinery & Equipment 71200 $24,000

2100 | Police Vehicles 71119 $65,452

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 22-23 budget to accept and expend Operation Stonegarden
grants funds for various Police Department expenditures. Funding will come from the grant
funding for this purpose.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.



THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission
that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 10th day of April 2023.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the day of April 2023.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #3



City of Kingsville
Public Works, Street Division

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

cC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

FROM: William Donnell, Director of Public Works
DATE: March 31, 2023

SUBJECT: Fund 001 Budget Amendment Request
Summary:

This item authorizes additional funding for vehicle and equipment maintenance in the Street
Division.

Background:

During the current budget the Street and Garage Divisions have tried to keep maintenance and
repair costs within budget. Unfortunately, the cost for parts and outsourced mechanic labor is
very expensive. The division has currently expensed $56,375, mostly for repairs on the following
units: Unit 5110 backhoe($6,710), Unit 534 dump truck($9,991), Unit 505 dump truck($10,590),
Unit 5105 F-350($9,023) and Unit 5117 wheel loader($2,757). Additional expenses thru February
for inventory supplies in the Garage is $6,944. Encumbrances are nearly $9,000 for needed
repairs including Unit 5108 dump truck (56,237).

Financial Impact:

This will reduce unappropriated Fund 001 balance by $35,000 and increase the Vehicle
Maintenance line item 001-5-3050-41100 by $35,000.

Recommendation:

Staff is requesting approval of funds to cover unforeseen repairs and monthly maintenance costs
for the remaining budget.




ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE
FUNDING TO COVER ADDITIONAL STREET DEPARTMENT VEHICLE MAINTENANCE.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#41

Dept Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease
Fund 001 — General Fund
Expenditures
3050 | Street Vehicle Maint 41100 $35,000
1030 | City Special Budget Amend Reserve 86000 $35,000

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 22-23 budget to appropriate funding for additional funding
for Street Department vehicle maintenance. Funding will come from the General Fund Budget
Amendment Reserve line item.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission

that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.
1



THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 10th day of April 2023.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the day of April 2023.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



REGULAR AGENDA



AGENDA ITEM #4



City of Kingsville
Human Resources Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

CC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

FROM: Diana Gonzales, HR Director

DATE: April 18, 2023

SUBJECT: All-Risk Property Insurance Renewal

Summary: This item presented for consideration will authorize award of the All-Risk

Background:

Financial Impact:

Property Insurance Coverage for the City of Kingsville for the period of May
1, 2023 through April 30, 2024. This policy covers perils of Fire, Flood,
Earthquake, Lightening, Windstorm, Named Storms, and Equipment
Breakdown. The City’s Total Insured Values (TiV) for this renewal with
incumbent insurance carrier, AmRisc, are $62,872,506 an increase of
$4,407,848 comprised of valuation increases due to inflation (required by
carrier) and new assets.

In March 2023, Carlisle Insurance approached the City’s incumbent
Property Insurance carrier (Amrisc) to request a renewal quote. Carlisle
Insurance also solicited quotes from 37 additional property insurance
carriers that underwrite Coastal Windstorm and all-other peril risks. The
attached letter from Chase Carlisle illustrates the current state of the
global property insurance market which continues to be a hard market.
The proposal includes a list of the markets approached for this renewal.

See attached documents including recommendation from Carlisle
Insurance, AmRisc proposal and the Carrier’s Schedule of Values (SOV)
Breakout spreadsheet.

The enclosed renewal quote of $ 502,020.96 is an increase of $173,828.21
as compared to the expiring premium. The increase is due primarily to the
Property Insurance marketplace which is driven by global and domestic
property insurance losses.



Recommendation:

City of Kingsville
Human Resources Department

Significant Changes
S50 million loss limit - All Other Perils
- Deductible increase from $ 10,000 to $ 25,000 per occurrence

S50 million loss limit - All Other Wind/Hail
- Deductible increase from $100,000 per occurrence to 1%
Minimum $100,000 per occurrence, per location

$25 million loss limit — Named Storm
- Deductible increase from 3% minimum $100,000 to
5% minimum $250,000 per occurrence, per location

Electronic Media — Limit decrease from $1 million to $500,000
Errors & Omissions — Limit decrease from $100,000 to $25,000

Fungus, Mold, Mildew, Spores, Yeast — Increase from $100,000 per
occurrence/annual aggregate to $250,000.

Property Insurance premiums are budgeted in Insurance-Property/Liability
Insurance line items in both the General Fund and the Utility Fund.

After review of Carlisle Insurance recommendation and AmRisc proposal,
staff is recommending continuing with AmRisc as the City’s all-risk
property insurance carrier for another policy year (May 1, 2023 — April 30,
2024) with an annual cost of $ 502,020.96.



CARLISLE

L INSURANCE

April 17, 2023

City of Kingsville
ATTN: Diana Gonzales
Kingsville, TX

Re: Property Insurance Renewal
Dear Ms. Gonzales,

I want to first thank you and the City of Kingsville for allowing Carlisle Insurance the
opportunity to obtain property insurance renewal quotes on your behalf.

The global property insurance market has continued to harden as we have seen for consecutive
years since 2017. A combination of multiple years of global natural disaster losses, a global
pandemic, inflation and the war in Ukraine have all contributed to an unsettled property
insurance market. This year has already proven to be the most difficult year we have ever seen.
Carriers have pulled out of the market while others are reducing the amount of coverage they
will provide on each individual risk. The marketplace is seeing an unprecedented number of
submissions which is creating a delay in receiving renewal quotes. The public entity accounts in
the region are seeing a 25-85% increase in renewal rates in the first quarter of 2023.

On behalf of the City of Kingsville, we marketed and submitted the risk to over 35 carriers in an
effort to produce the broadest coverage terms while maintaining a competitive pricing. The
incumbent carrier, AmRisc, again proved to be the best option for the City of Kingsville. To
date, we have received no other competitive options for the property renewal. A marketing
summary has been provided to staff with the responses from the other markets.

The enclosed renewal proposal reflects a 39% rate increase from the expiring 2022-2023 term
with a change to the Named Storm deductible from a 3% to 5%. This years coverage includes a
named storm loss limit of $25M in coverage verse the full limits purchased in the past. Should
the City have elected to buy full limits again, the estimated premium cost would have been
another $200,000- $250,000. There was also an increase of 7.5% in the replacement cost values
being insured to meet the inflationary cost increases of construction materials and labor over the
past few years. The estimated cost increase of raising these values is $34,800 in additional
premium.

Again, | want to thank you for your continued trust in our firm. We value our relationship with
the City.

Yours truly,

cC Caw

Chase Carlisle, CIC, CMIP, CPCU
Vice President

(361)884-2775
chaseci@icarlisleins.com




Marketing Summary:

Arrowhead - Pending, modeling xs of $25M

Aspen — Modeling $15M xs $10M

AXIS - Pending

Beazley — Pending

Berkshire — Advised they would need more

Catalytic — Pending

Core Specialty - Pending

CuroTech — Declined due to location

General Star -~ Pending

Great American — Can consider x-wind excess if needed.
Hallmark E&S - Pending

Hudson — Can consider x-wind excess if needed.

intact Insurance — Pending, likely x-wind only.

fronshore — Not a fit due to targets and capacity needed.
James River — Modeling $15M xs $10M and $25M xs $25M
Kemah — Not a fit due to targets and limited capacity they can offer.
Kinsale — Modeling $15M xs $10M

Lexington Specialty — Declined due to location.

Markel - Modeling $15M xs $10M

Mitsui —- Can consider x-wind excess if needed.

Munich Re — Pending

Navigators — Pending

Paragon —Pending

R.B. Jones — Declined due to location.

Risksmith ~ Not a fit due to TIV size

Rivington Partners — Out of capacity

RLl - Pending

RSUI - Pending

Sompo - Pending

SRU - Pending

Starr — Pending

Swiss Re — Not a fit due to location and TIV.

Velocity — Pending

Ventus — Pending

Westchester, A Chubb Company — Pending

Westfield — Pending

Zurich — Limited to $2.5M of capacity in a compressed primary and needs $250K AOP and 5% NS

¢ & & & 5 5 & & 2 S B & 5 B S S S & S & 8 4 B O S o 6 " s s 0 e



e

2023 -2024
INSURANCE PROPOSAL

CARLISLE

INSURANCE
PRESENTED BY:
Chase Carlisle, CIC, CMIP, CPCUJ

April 17, 2023

Page 1



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Agency Introduction.......c.ccvveiiiiiiiiii e
Property Insurance Proposal.........ccccooviiiiiiiiiiniiiinincnnnn2

Premium CompariSon....ccouvvieiiieiiiiiiciciininsnasaenennsarrnensad

DISCLAIMER: The abbreviated outlines of coverages used throughout this proposal
are not intended to express any legal opinion as to the nature of coverage. They are
only visuals to a basic understanding of coverages. Please read your policy for specitic

details of coverages.

Page 2



AGENCY INTRODUCTION

At Carlisle Insurance, whether it is for yourselt, your business or both, we
take pride in providing a personalized plan to give you the right coverage
now to provide peace of mind in the future. We understand what it means
to be proud of what you have, and how important it is to know that it is
protected. We are proud to offer the strength to protect you when you need
it most, the security of a plan tailored to your needs, and the stability of an
enduring insurance agency.

Since 1925 Carlisle Insurance has provided clients with protection through
any obstacle. We have grown our business to operate in multiple locations
and continue to ofter quality protection to meet the growing needs of those
who count on us. At Carlisle Insurance we view ourselves as more than a
Corpus Christi insurance agency; we are a family of professionals who Take
Pride in our commitment to covering what matters most to you.

We pride ourselves on certitied employees you can trust to have the skills
and experience to find the right plan for you and your company. We believe
it is important to take the extra etffort and make sure our employees are some
of the most educated and most prepared to handle your business. Whether
it is our producers or service representatives, our team members are
committed to identitying the right coverage tor your business, your home
and your lite.

We Take Pride in our ability to cover your business and your needs so you
can be ready tor what could happen next. As a longstanding company, the
Carlisle Insurance family knows what it takes to be successful and we will
continue to work towards that success with pride to serve you in the future.
When you trust in Carlisle Insurance, you trust in coverage you can be
proud of.

Page 3



HURRICANE RECOVERY PLAN

We have developed a disaster plan for our agency to assist our clients at the rime of loss. The plan
uses a two level approach. The following lists the highlights.

YOUR DATA IS PROTECTED. Our client informarion, including information on your

property locations and coverage, is mirrored off site daily and it is backed up ro tape which is
removed o an offssire location.

LEVEL ONE DISASTER. In case of a disaster or evacuation affecting one of our offices, the fax
and phone lines will be rerouted to one of our other three offices in South Texas. Any of our
offices can handle the operations for any other office.

LEVEL TWO DISASTER. 1u case of a large scale or prolonged disaster we have parmered with
Agiliry Recovery Solutions (www.agilityrecovery.com), a national disaster recovery company, to
get us up and going very soon after a disaster. They had an excellent rrack record of providing
service after the Karrina and Rira hurricanes. Wirhin 48 hours after the disaster, Agility
Recovery will bring in trailers, compurers, sarellite data and phone connections and generators
to create a fully funcrional office. The fax and phone lines will be rerouted through the
satellite connections to enable seamless communicarion wirh our clients.

WE ENCOURAGE YOU TO DEVELOP A DISASTER RECOVERY PLAN FOR YOUR BUSINESS.
THE FOLLOWING ARE USEFUL LINKS:

o]

For information on safery tips, contact the Institute for Business and Home Safety at
www.disastersafery.org

For up ro darte tracking of approaching hurricanes access the National Oceanographic &
Arnmspheri(‘ Administrarion at WWW. 103, 8QV
For road conditions including status of hurricane evacuarion routes go ro www.txdot.gov

Page 4



PROPERTY INCLUDING WINDSTORM

Company

AM. Best’s Raring:

Policy Term:

Cerrain Underwriters ar Lloyds

AXV

05/01/2023 - 05/01/2024

LOCATION BUILDING

All Scheduled Locations-
Per Artached Schedule

$43,912,903

BUSINESS PERSONAL  BUSINESS INCOME
PROPERTY INCLUDING EXTRA EXPENSE IS CELLANEOUS
$13,986,827 $500,000 34,472,775

Page §

LOCATION LIMIT

All Other Perils & All Other Wind/Hail $50,000,000
Named Storm $25,000,000

Premium  $ 408,360.00

laspecrion Fee  $ 750.00

Policy Fee 9,341.00

Taxes % 23,205.11

Fees % 358.85

Estimated Annual Premium % 502,020.96

Minimum Earned $ 174,019.10

Minimum Annual Premium k) 502,020,906



Flood Limir

$2,500,000 Per Oce & in Annual Aggregate Excepr; $ 1,000,000 Per
Occ and in Annual Aggregate for locations in Zones A &V

Deductible- All Othier Perils

$25,000 Per Occurrence

Named Srorm Deductible

5% Min $250,000 Per Occurrence , Per Locarion

All Other Wind/Hail Deductible

196 Min $100,000, Per Occurrence, Per Locarion

Deducrible- Flood

$100,000 Per Occurrence Maximum NFIP whether purchased or nor,
for locarions in Zones Prefixed with A or V or within Zone B, X500,
Plas $100,000 Per Oce

Deductible- Earthquake

$25,000 Per Occurrence

Business Income Term

Acrual Loss Sustained

Causes of Loss Form

Special

Valuarion

Replacement Cost

Coinsurance

NIL

Ordinance & Law

See Form

Page 6




COVERAGES LIMITS

Earth Movement $5,000,000 Per Oce & Annual Agg for All Locations Combined
Accounts Receivable $2,000,000
Civil or Military Authority; the lesser of 30 Days Max/$ 1,000,000
Contingent Time Element; the lesser of 60 Days Max/$1,000,000
Contractors Equipment; Unscheduled: Owned, leased, $250,000
rented or borrowed

Any One lrem $25,000
Course of Construction $250,000
Course of Construction Soft Costs $25,000
Debris Removal; the lesser of 25%/%5,000,000
Electronic Data & Media $500,000
Errors or Omissions $25,000
Extended Period of Indemniry 180 Days
Extra Expense/Expediting Expense $1,000,000
Fine Arts $500,000
Fire Brigade Charges $250,000
Fungus, Mold, Mildew, Spores, Yeast $250,000
Ingress/Egress 30 Days max $500,000
Leasehold Interest $100,000
Limited Pollution Coverage $100,000 Annual Aggregare
Lock Replacement $25,000
Miscellaneous Unnamed Locations $ 100,000

Newly Acquired Property

00 Days max $1,000,000

Ordinance or Law- Coverage A

Included in Building Limit

Ordinance or Law- Coverage B&C

10% Per Bldg, Max $1M Per Qcc

Ordinary Payroll

30 Days

Plants, Lawns, Trees or Shrubs $100,000

Any One Plant, Lawn, Tree or Shrub $25,000
Professional Fee $250,000 (Annual Aggregare)
Reclaiming, restoring or repairing land improvements $25,000
Reward Reimbursement $25,000
Royalties $25,000
Service Interruption (72 Hour Qualifying Period) $500,000
Spoilage $100,000
Time Element Monthly Limitation 1/12* Monthly
Transit $ 100,000
Underground Pipes, Flues & Drins $50,000
Valuable Papers & Records $2,000,000

Sinkhole Loss Extension

As Per Schedule

Cyber Suite

$100,000 (Annual Aggregare)

Wind Driven Precipitation Excluded
Equipnient Breakdown $50,000,000

Page 7




s

TERMS & CONDITIONS

Terms and condirions include bur are nor limited to:

o]

G 0 0 0

o G 0O 0 0

Flood- Maximum NFIP, whether purchased or nor, for Locations in Zones prefixed with A
or V within Zone B, X500 or X-Shaded; Plus $ 100,000 Per Occ

Percent Deducribles are Per Occurrence, Per Location

Limirs are as per schedule by Building, NOT BLANKET

Cosmetic Roof Damage Restriction

Exclusion of Certified Acts of Terrorism (Can be purchased for additional premium of
$23,169)

Coverage Excludes all damage directly or indirectly caused by Named Storm in existence
upon receipt of written request to bind

Named Storm is sublimited to $25 Million Per Occurrence

SUBJECT TO

Severe Cancellation Penalties apply to CAT Exposed Property

Signed Property Application (SOV)

Signed Flood Norice

Signed TRIA Disclosure Norice

Roof Coverings to be ACV if originally installed or last fully replaced prior to 2011

Page 8



000'SES Jos 000'5E% o [ z 000t i £9£87 | X1 ogiasbuny) PY opipu0ey 3 (05 L XOOSSRl SIS
[ 03 006'S23 03 [ i 009 i £9EBZ | XL ogiAsBiiny PY OpipUOSS] 3 105 P31 0005 - wseasany)
890 LECS 05 $80°LEES 03 0% N o Z10Z €9£8/ | X1 egiAsbuy) SUGCHEIY SNGIIBA (8pun 008) sisdung arbasery,
S159bS 05 SI5ovS 03 0% 3 0 z00Z £9£87 | XL otasbiany SIGHESO SHOEA] (02 WiBr ssusSAimpanmir
[k os 05 0% BE6'SLS Z 0 €9€8. | XL aginsBury YT AT IR
5481618 0S 05 0 SL8°151§ L o €988 | X1 agiasBuny BB UloN
000°2rs 08 000'2r$ 08 0% € 0081210z It £968L | X1 aASEUD 12000 3 00E}
006 11¥S 0$ 000 05§ 0061908 [ EVIZ  gmBL |1 €968, | XL ayiasHun L RRHN 05T
SZZ8LS jos M 0% 0% 7 0 €OE87 | X1 GFIASDUTY BGI 3 0041
000698 0% 000055 0% 08 Z 0 5002 €9e8L | X1 aiAsBuTy AREL
S8y .55 0S 0% 0§ G8Y°(GS L 0 0102 €968 | ¥1 BRSBTS o6 puB uij |
000’088 0 o0$ 08 000 06% i 0 o16g EZTHIER SASEUIAMI 11O /(] UDISEI SBIN § ¢
0057018 03 005 015 0s [ 3 0 0861 RN agiasBung ’G SIpUSY Bwes 3 1ogz
000°051$ 0% 0% 08 0000515 B o 0102 £9E8. | Xi agiashury IS Apausy pue IS it L 3
L99'E75% 0% [ 000'68¢S L98'8¢E1S L ) 0102 €968/ | X1 SgiASBUIY IS Apaua) pus s WiEl RISLIR 558 E53d, 39, )
002°ZS 0 0% 0% 002'Cs 1 S84 8002 |v £9£87 [ X1 agiastuny Py e G GOBNS Y
000555 [ 03 000558 7 €8, [800z |1 £0E8/ | X1 ogiAsTRAY 357 pUe UizL  Biapuig wouRg,
00E €9vg 0 08 000645 00E 885 z 891 12002 11 i E egiasBury Siagen 3 pOL HoSey
005088 0S 005088 [ '3 i 9€ 800 €968, | X1 agiasBuIy iQ SpnSH eES 3 1 0gy, S sseiking!
12118 0 L2LLS 0% 0S 1 9€ 8007 €9€8L | X1 BRiAsEuTy IS 19 S 2092 g asusfyog ﬁ%‘a&
000°0518 0S5 0§ [ 000°051S £ 0 8007 €9£82 | X1 egiasBury 1S YIS 2092 YR ISR, D0 B0 J
vEEOr0’LS oS [ 000°58E8 PEE 1993 T vZe 800z |1 EETIREN agiasBury 1S W9 S 709 SOIPUUORI Y ALS WIS /L0 §ORABITN
828°068 0% 828068 0S 0% £ 0 8002 £9E8L | X1 apasBury IS 49 S otE) XOF [GRIOTY PGE
828 058 0§ BZ8 053 0 3 € 0 8002 £9€87 | X1 ogastung any Bintary 3 £+
828°05S 08 828°05% i3 0% € 0 5007 £9EBL | XL SISy BOTSWIY N 20/ T
828°05S 0% 828058 [ 0§ B [ 8602 €988, | X1 HIASTRIN ISWI KN L0 =
000'0515 03 08 o 000'051§ € 0 S/61 €9E8L | X1 apsbund 15 Ulg pue sozene jeleg 3
00£'800°18 0% 0% o 00/'800°L § £ ¥900Z Jsooz 11 €968 | XL aglasButy] [ERET s
ZLE'G2S 08 zig'ses [ 0% | 00€ 100z [V €9E8. | X1 sgirsBuy Biagai pa 01 1 :
SZYETES 0% 0% 000'0¢% SZTHE6ZS 1 002 2661 |1 €9€8. | X1 BgIASEUI OELZ ¥D 3 Bs% e
00£'GL18 0% 0 000'ES 0022718 1 0sle Jgees |t €968 [ XL sgiasbury OElZ ¥D J8ve POT Wimndihy Lapad)
HIEA 08 0! €87 EZIS ZEQ'ZS L 0 1002 €9£87 | X1 apAsBuly| pY ebes 1o} SHUB | BRIOUAY (7] )
000'06143 08 0% 0% 000'0515 € 0 0002 TN aulasBuny ApadN M 1E 41 we i WS purtss Wb vy
0Z9°E91S 0s 0% 0§ 029°C01S © o £961 £9€8L | X1 SaiAsBlny BUGNIBH puY (1) (61 BOM WUR] sBIRAL PUnDID, 198 %757
018’8628 0 0% 018928 0000228 T oser liest v €968, | X1 ag1A5BIY) BUSIUSH DUy (g UL O D/ADUING | NBAY I 5 Bty
Z6£°9.°18 0 0% 03 26£'9.6L8 £ o 1561 €98, | XL agiAsBuny JeSORD pUE pig (12 8B/ YT | JDTRAA Poa0) 80 37
L¥0'8568 0S s E9F'L0ES ¥8S 1628 {4 £0% sy it £9£8Z X4 atasfuny IBSDED) PUB PIE INBUNOII DABAL MR AL ART: Takigs)
90£'945°28 0s s 0% 90£'945Z8 € 0 +851 €9¢8¢ | Xi iasBury SOTRARD) (BIGUAD) 3 004 L B IBRAY Dapesa S aek
0z9cers 63 0% [ 029915 [ 0 2007 €968 | X1 ogiA ST SOIHAD 618U J DOL L K18 | IBGAK Ponoity JOE WL
SrVBLLS 08 [ 0008918 Sr0lgs [4 105 L6011 €9£8, | ¥1 agiASTU SOTEABDIRINAG JQ0LL] WIS AN RIS OOHABAA FRE A Hitg
19602518 05 0§ 60O 68 19511518 € 0 5561 €0£82 | XL giasbuiy| 1S Apaisy pUe Uiz} AW [ MUB | Daieanis 165 Horie
19502518 0% 0% 000'65 1967016715 € 0 9561 £9£87 | X4 aqiasBury Bunaswiy pue Anpsiny Knowens [l | pRBKS B wie
000'051S 53 08 0 0000518 € o 9561 €9€8Z | X1 oAshing O Ay puv Uig 172 198) yun | oBustng punoss w5 v
00t'5EES 0s 0 00V 082S 000'65% [ r2f 9661 1 €988 | X1 wgAsBury; O Ay v (g BIOn O AIBUIB | AR SO RS i)
006 50 08 0§ 0s 006'S0vS £ G6EL  Joooz {1 tores | X1 Birsbug e ER OSBRI MRS
005 LE1S 03 0 0 005 ZEiS € 2952 1266t |1 €9€97 | %1 agiAsEry 12403 3 60 | GUONEBEGIS
C00'7ES 0 000° €S 0 o8 H vez  lseer |1 £9€eL | X1 aqinshuiy {0 SIPIPaY BWES 3 10BL 1100y yeaig sakosdvd peng W
002°€2S oS 05 000013 00ZELS z gtz Jozel 11 E9E8. | X1 agiasBaiy 0 SIPUUSY BIES J (082 BIOIS ORAGT RaRy W
00C €128 0% 0% 000'sES 0028418 H S80L 15661 |1 £988. | X1 agiAsBury 10 $IPrIMBS BRIES 3 [ 0B i e e
002'8421S oS 0 000°001'iS 1002818 [ 080+ [sg96L |1 €9£8. | XL agtasBuy IQ SIPULSS BWPS 31087 Cuiping 18R atny
00Z'6448 0S 05 000°0023 002'67% £ 9GvL o581 |1 £oe8s | X1 aiasbury 0 SPLeD) BRES 3 1082 PRI ALY R A
$66°8595 03 05 000°055% 566 8P1S 3 £06 Bg6L |1 €088/ | X1 ogiaslury £143 W 00002 DRI MR 5 T
9/r'coes 0s 0s 000'05€€ 9/vELS £ vB6  fcest |1 £9€8, | X1 ogiasfiny 4121 W4 0000z, PIUS A5 B T
€£2'918 0% €EC 9% 05 © 0 €99, | N1 opASBIy DUGRSUITY pUE ApauaY] Vans
£E29(% 55 EEZ 01§ 0§ € 0 €9FRL | XL agiASBn BT puR ]y LS avén?,
EEZ 91§ 0% TECGL% 0% € 0 EXIRED BgIASTUIy PY WiEIL 3 D0G ang A um
L97B51E (03 0% 0000615 i858 ¥ Tri D £9£8Z | XL SYIASEU £1LL W 00008 UongIS dWing §€m RN S,
CZE'6S 08 0§ [ 2Ze'es 0 €9E®, | XL agAshuUI 2444 W3 300LT 295 WD 0 SOBOH BURER
005'89v$ 03 05 0008 006 0955 z I TEND €9e8. | XL agiASBUY 15 Ui N 60E 20 Bunimi| W84 ang agesduy
190'86S 05 0% 000'525 190 ELS ¥ 0 €8€8. | X1 agasButy 4G BPRIUeS) UES 3 L0gE BBl SIS DA O] YOG 3 |M
964 8oV 0 U 9L £5% 005 Svrs i 607 10561 3 €968 | X1 BIASDUIN BUoHSULY N GLG 78 sogmg R
006'zogs 0$ 08 6000018 006'2045 962¢  Ioz [t £9€84 | X1 pirstupy OAY BUIN A QLY Dupyng 5.5;;
90201598 000'005S 0 0000548 90209265 0i16€2_letoz |t €0£87 | X1 aiasiny BAY B m 00F P54 Ry
048°056% 0% 0% 0§ 042'0598 ¥ 0S0€ __[o46t |t €968/ | X1 sgiAsBuny GSEL M N IZHE S ety
</ IR ! Ié % SYPTrE1S 03 08 0000525 618918 B 0 €982 | X1 ansBu LE71 V43 00002 UG | DS WG S
- - 16€ 6EF'ES 05 0% 0000523 £6€°681°CS S 0 €988 | X1 spasbung Q SIPABY @S 3 16BY] A
' OvE'861 LS 0% o 0PS +9ES 008'ELE'Z! v §816L 16461 7 €98/ | x1 agiasbury Sse98i% 3 002 Buping woousy
1244 -sUoRE201 Iy 00€'199'¢s 0S [ 005 96€S 008 ¥8Z €8 1 66251 oS61 |1 €9£92 | X[ agiastury — S U NBLY e OIS DE§ RIS
SEREIOUYM AJ 11810 | enjeAlg BORAIOYLD Sr4RAIIOD | SUniuA posusiou | 1i5UOH vsry 1 yg ik Issuolg aimng At HUTUI05 TG SUITNDTY J




18528 os 18528 05 os B 002 1 €968/ | X1 agiAsBny] PY OPIRIODST 3 [0

905'1§ 03 90518 0 0% £ 007 ! €9€82 | XL agnsbuiy PY OPPU0dS]I 3 (06

90518 0% 90515 03 03 £ 00Z i €9€8 | X[ BpASEun] PY OPIpUO3ST 3 (g5

905°1§ 05 906 1S [ 08 £ 00T 1 €988 | X[ spiasBuny] PY OpiUGIsT 3 {pg

£88'9% 0% £68'9% 03 0s € 000 i €9€8/ | XL agiasiiury] Py OPIIOIST 3 (08

9051 05 905'1S 08 0% £ [ 1 €8e8s | X1 ogiasBny Py opIpL0oIsS3 3 105

£08'04 0s €88°05 0% 08 € 0001 | coegs | Xy ogtastiory PY OPIPUOSST 3 10

80518 0S 90515 3 oS £ 002 T E9LBL | X1 wgiASTUTY PY Opipu03sT 3 1pg]

905 18 05 905°1S 0§ 0% 3 002 v BTN oYIASDUIR Py OPIPUOSST T 151

€88'08 03 £668°95 o5 0s £ 0001 1 €9E8Z | XL ofnsBui PY OPIPUSIST T 1G]

BZS'ES 035 BZS €S 08 08 £ 05T 1 €068 | X1 agiasbury] Py opipucIsy 37105

05£°09S 0s 05.°09§ 0% 0% i 0052 lzicZ |1 €568 | X1 agiasBuiy 1S WA N IGE

005'5/5 0% 005'S.8 [ 0% ! 95T otoz_ |t €968 | x) SHASOUIN} DN SOZBARD [619USS) 3 00z 1

005'0rS 0S| 0% 000°0LS 005018 z o 0007 €968, | X1 agiasbuny ugr} sopeD)

005 0vs 0S 0% 000°0E8 005015 L 0 0008 €9e8L | X1 sgiastuny UOISIAIBGNS #BRID UNoS

005°0rS 0% 0% 000'0£8 005015 L o 0002 EIEN sgiasBuny i3 Ampy

000'8E$ oS 0% 000°0£% 000°8S L o 0002 £9€8¢ | X1 oiasbury 0ZEE Py uire 4]

05043 j0S 0$ 000°0CS 0S¥ 0rsS L 0 0002 €oE82 | X1 aiasbury 44 MH S Z19Z]

0008825 H 08 000'SZS 000'£928 4 [}] 0002 €968/ | X1 oyinsbury L1 A puv abeg

0G1'o85 0% 0§ 000028 051'998 L 0 561 €988 | X| aqiasBuiy VLV W4 30011

615715 05 615°1s 03 0% v vrl 0102 [t £9e87 | XL apasBupy IS ApausX pUE 1S WIEL

880 0 880'2$ 0% 0% € 3 oL0Z €9¢8¢ | X1 egiAsOuy 1S Apeudyi pue s uigy

000'SS 04 000°SS 0% 0% 1 06+ TR €987 | X1 3giAsDuy] BUDASUIY N (5A1L

vZE LS 65 vZE18 0% [ z 091 5861 |1 €9E87 | X1 iAsBOry IS Wig # 60¢.

000'€23 0% 000'€CS oS oS ¥ 0zt 0861 |t £0€8L | X1 BRASDUTY SSCLWIN 1Zrt

000'56S 05 000 565 o8 S [ 65C1 18002 (1 L9€87 | X] aAsDoI Q SIPNIPBG EES 3 1097

980728 oS 88045 0% [ < 0 8002 €oc8s | X1 oqiAsBury 1S Yig S 209¢] ]

259°9PES 05 0% 000°Z1¢S 259'9¢§ v 264 2002 1 €968, | Xi sgiasbuny PY OpipUCDS3 J (GG Suipng pewdits Tanag

S19161g 0% 03 0§ 581618 € 0 5002 €968, | XL agasBuny CEIZ ¥O F8rE TN G I

000°01S 05 000°01 8 08 [ 1 0 500C R sgiashury OEIZ 8D 3 8FE R

001°0%SS 0% 05 0$ 001 0SS € €786 15002 [t €9£82 | X1 ] O0£iZ MD 3 8ve sbesoisipRag g finirgy)

000°82S DS 08 000513 000115 € £2e)  logsL |+ €888 | X1 eqiasBary] U vied obewies (1g sbeioisaonns kg socmmrieg

£86'18 0$ 186'4S 03 oS £ o 2961 €9£8. | X1 oyiasliiny APBUSY M LELL AR

168658 0% 0% $60'958 LEE'LS i 081 Z961 €9£87 | X1 i~ 5Dy ApBUBY AL (E11 isG Swon arg)

000'6ES 0s 000'6€S os 08 3 s 1961 €9EBL | XL ] THaUSH pUY Uig WA

SBE'LES 05 GBB'LES 035 03 | z68 1002 ¢ €9EBZ | XL BYIASBUTY Jesee3 pui pig ?gmglu&

29058 oS 29058 [ 0 € i ¥661 €9EBL | XU sty JESBED B Pig AR

9628 0% 28628 0% 0% € o 1461 €988/ | X1 ST SCTBABD BANSD S G111 B

59758 05 C6Z o5 0% 0% £ i 9661 €9E8Z | X1 A SDuTy 0 oAV PRy §ig =

000115 oS 000°L1S 03 0% i 05€ 0561 |1 €368/ | X1 ag1AsEUTY 4111 W4 06007 DI AN LA

000118 0% 000115 0% 08 L 057 661 1 €9887 | X1 BYIASIXITN 4341 W4 0000z, DPHG S0 MIRUOS Bt

€46°021% oS TI60LL% S i i 0 o THIERN agiasbusy O OpIIODs 3 0nl 7L e

99£°05Z8 0s 98L0528 0% 0% i o £9£87 1 X1 aiAsD01y PY OPIPUO3SF 6oLt LH NG Y Doman

0510718 oS o8 059655 001’961 18 | Zers  fes6l Iy EATEN sgiashury OPIPUOIST 3 0501 L SRR OB e )

000'6ES 0% 000 6£S 0% 0% € 0 4107 €9£87 | X1 agiasBn] ey 36157 FXB 304 HASHING]

000°0vPs 08 0% 03 000 0r S z 000t [1102 11 €968, | XL Sgiastury e ELT FEIOH 100 BIMSNGTT)

8£0'68 0% 85065 0% 08 £ i) L N apasbuy Py OPIpUO3S3 3 (06 14 Buneog pasenTH

L¥8'501S 08 LY5POLS 0§ 0% Z [} corgl [ %y sginsbury PY OpIpUOIS T 310G Bieog aio0gsubryeie 3 i

S5 1018 05 G52 701§ [ 0% H 009 4 EITEN oginsbury DY OpIans3 355 s

055°ES 03 055'£8 0s 0s i [ 1 tot8s | X1 SASDULY e EX £ O0RIOIS AwDy ey

$25'118 0% SZSLYS 0% 0% 1 051 i €oc92 | X1 agiastuiy PY OPIOaS T 3 106 Z# OURIOS Mo gy

SEL1ZS 03 SELIZS (5 03 L 001 L TN EN ag:AsButy; Py 0pipuoos3 3 (g L2 ahRa)S wemt; ngwng

9v0'88S 08 9v0'883 0% 0$ £ 0052 i £9€8L | X1 apasboiy PY OPPUGIST 3 1ng oy

24T 1es S 112 18% 0% 0 z 009 z €968 | X1 agiisiunyg PY OpIUGIS 3 (05 959 JHi00H &

ZE6TL11E 0% o5 05 2567118 i 0052 [ €987 | X1 agiashui PY OPIFUGIST 510G B

Z2L8ts 6% 22l evs [ [ z 009 T £9€87 | XL HiasBoy PY OpIPOSST 3 (06 AR

000'£5S oS 000°£58 0s oS | 001 rioZ |1 €98/ | XL A sBuny PH 0pipuoss3 3 oG A

8 0vS 0 58, 9vS 0% 08 z 0024 ' €968 | X1 ogiastuny PY OPPUOIST 3 (08 obaing - *gmﬁm&

£98°0ES oS 198°0E8 05 05 5 cos | €9EB7 | XL 0g1AS DGy PY 0PPUCIST T [0S SRS

ZEE0FS 03 ZECOrS 0% 08 € [ ' £0€84 | X1 ogiasBuiy U ued oBeaues Gy Suppg e

18575 oS 18528 0% 0% 5 0z B AN ARIASTUY] DY opipuodss 3105 i TG

Tisits 05 ZIGLES 0% 03 1 059 z £9€92 | XL By oY OpIpUSSST 3 (95 b XOOBEB G T aIC

000°05S 0S 000'05S 0§ 0% £ 005 z £9€8, | X1 apasbuing Py OpIpUeIs3 3 109 £# XOQSSaNLOTER AT )

2.9°0613 0$ 21970615 0% [ 3 i £9EBL | X1 SqpasBuy PY OpIpUS3sT 3 {05 b G e %ﬁsﬁmﬂ

S 08 BZLB¥S 0% 08 ] B €968 | X1 2ginsBu PY OpIPUSIsT 3 10% 1504 puR SIRSBHMY Dby moaT

646'055 05 6257055 os 0$ ! 00r 1 €9e8. | X1 sastuy PY OpipUOSST 310G £# woonSHg)

000°05S 0s 00008 o5 08 Z 009 z £0£87 | X1 oinsBliy PY OPIPUOIST 3 g T XOGIBB L4 GOSSRITY

000'G.S 05 000'SL 03 0% z 0001 1 €9£82 | X1 tASOUTY DY 0piuossy 3 [pg L# BROGHEE
FERUIDUI M Al {JCTO | emeAIg BTHRAJOUIY SHRAIGS SSNTA DISBIIOY NS0 ey YR IL [Seuols nuig Axs o.tﬂ:.»a:m |mﬂuwmu|o.~ 1

AL dudaid



505249298 800005 296 LY 128986’ Joslovivvs
000228 0 000'£28 08 08 €988 | X1 apasbunit Awy epis 1see uo ueniy soped uanG oS
000°06S 0% 000°06$ H 0% €968 | X1 apastuiy 807 9 i} SRR W T
000001 S 0% 0% 000001 S £0E8L | XU ogiasbury 9AY [RHOD 3 001 AdouRD/M UOHIIS 0N SHIBA TR
000°012S 0% 0% 000001 0000115 cogas | X1 agiasBuin “BAY 18103 '3 001 yhg Doy
000'0228 0% 03 08 000°022$ 3 €988 | X4 egiasbury Py abes zoez SO 2o
SLE'0LS 0% 08 GLEIES 000€eS £ €9g8l | X1 ogiastuny 281 M 8202 Suiping abeiols furppng sy worod
G0L 60t 1§ 03 0% 000SF1S 00/ 068 Z €928 | XL afirsbuy| 887 M V0L Epung yalasy ainmg
000045 05 000C1S 0% 0% £ ! €968, | XL ETEN Py OPIUDIST 3 105 S UopRE
GO004S 0% 0000t§ 0% 0% £ I €966 | XA oASETy PY ODIPU0YET 3 (06 e DO
000°01S 0s 000048 0% 05 3 005 3 €988 | X1 BRiASBUY| PY OpiIPUGSST 3 10G €8 UOKAES|
000015 0% 00001S 08 0% < 052 1 €968, | XJ agiasbury P OpIpI0IST 3 105 R
000015 03 000 0LS 0% 0§ € 05Z | £9€87 | XL aginsBuiy| e E L MO ]
1218 05 12218 0s 0% £8€8/ | X1 agiasBury 297 M 202 syl
951°929'58 05 08 956'96Z°€S _ 1008'B62E 8§ Z9Z11 |866% |1 €o£8s | X1 BEIASDUTY Bay BUd 3 00/L] (51958 [ #0404 PUL) RBT RISt Wiy
000°05S 05 000058 0S 0s £968 | X1 agiasbuiy oy abes zoce waishs Taanyy paymany
000 £8S 0 000'48% 0% 0% €968, | X1 agashuny 1S9 NSLE 3L WP T
000'28% o 000°/88 0% 0% £9€82 | X1 egiasBurny] iSWI9 'S 7092 AR BAIET
0007288 iE 000285 0s 0$ cotel | X4 aglashury 193AS Wy S bOOL IR ISP AT
000°28S i3 000'28% 0% 0s coces | xi agiaskuy Py ebes zorg) SV IOTRERIRT A% IIGT.
000°288 05 000 (8% 0§ 0% £9E8. | XL aiasbuix DoAY M EEL S IV ST
000283 0S 000288 03 0$ €668 | X1 BiRsbuy 1S Apusy 3 0E8 S LY SIS0 e T
000785 i 000°/8S 0% 0% EXIRES EEE SCZOARD [IBUSD J UL S IV ARG SR
000 S62% oS 0% 05 000 6528 €0E8L | X1 PASEOT Py 8505 TOEL| SIORUOM SAlng FIRO0E WD) TR
00LBLE LS 0S 0% os 00/ 6LE LS £9E8L | XL ogASEUS PY #bes Z0Le W] SDeIiS pURoIn UGIEs DOTR §
000GCLS 0 000518 o5 oS €SE6. | XL ogiAsBnT 1 SPRILGD BRIES J 108Z, PoUS GG LTS we
00€£°415 05 00E'118 [ 0% €o£8! | X1 AUy OPIICIST 3 7757 Rnwng sheies waely
005 (16°ZS 0s 0% 000°0053 00r'210C3 1 £9€8. | X1 BASDUN 181103 3 00EL B LGN R
00¥'1vE1S 03 0§ 007 LIE LS 0% €9£8s | X4 ogiAsbury Bny By aa 007 SPREE L
000001 § 03 0000018 05 08 €968, | X1 agasBuiy aAy Buny A ooy SR PR 5303 MU0
20162118 0% 0§ 000°508% 201 ¥ZES 3 005, oz i €088 | X4 sgasBury OPIpU03S 3 T 7262 ST 1S HOTH
001'61€°18 s 0% 000548 001 b 15 z SE8% Ivi0Z |4 £9£8, | XL 5By OppIG3a] J 2267 IR
11645 105 146°LS S i 3 0 L COESL | XL insbuy Apauiay 3 6151 R
16198 0% 1495 08 0% 3 002 [ €9ceL | X1 agiasBury Apouuay 3 6161 pags
805'1§ 0% 905'LS 0s 05 £ 00C i £9€87 | X1 agiasbuiy DY OpipUG3sST 3 106 G PRI
18028 0$ i64'TS 08 08 3 00 [ €9e8c | x4 ogiasbuiy PY OPIPUDIST 3 105 TR
90515 0% 905'1S 08 0% ¢ 002 L €ofR. | X1 ogiastuny PY OPIUIOOSI 3105 ¥ PREYY
§89°78 08 889'Z8 08 [ £ 00¢ | €9£8/ | X1 apiastury Py Opipu00s3 3 10§ 2hprng
v9LES 03 VoL €S 0% oS B 602 t €968 | X1 B DY OpIUGIST 3 105 2E DEpeRt, paaesy
505 1S 05 90518 0% oS tg 00Z 1 £9€9. | XL Rt SDUTS PY OPIPUDDS] 3 106 T PR
50518 08 s 3 [ B 002 | £98. | X1 SRIASET: Py OpIpUOIST 3 105 £E Ko,
orgrs 0S 0r8'rs 0% 0% B 00Z ' £9£8/ | X1 agiasfurg Py OPPMIADST 3 i 05 T PR
Ore'rS 0% 0rg'rs 0§ 0% € 002 i coess | X1 agiasBuiy PY OpIpU0Is3 3105 1 ﬂg
910'895 0% 970°'88% 0 0% € 0052 1 E9E8/ | XL opashiun DY OPIPpUOIST 3 10 Hings
vi91% 0S ¥19'18 0s 0s 3 00z | €987 | X1 SHASDU PY GRILIO3ST 3 105 o obng)
TLOTLE 5 1513 o5 o5 H 5T i EFEEL | AL SgASUY by oppuuss 3105 e walng
EENE 08 83818 0S 0% € 00Z ¢ EXTHEN agIAsiuny DY OPPUOST 3 106 Tt SUs S DAsENITY
Y0629 08 $06°¢S 08 0§ € 00Z i €988 | X1 agasbun PY OpIpu0os 3 108 e
vL9'1g 08 plois 0% 08§ £ 00z v £9€87 | 1 sgiasbuny DY OpIpUSIS 3 105 % BT
v1g1§ 05 Fi9°1S [ 0§ € 002 t €088 | X1 wiASBU PY OPPUODST 3 1085 T wedieg]
9E6'L oS 9£6'LS 08 03 € 002 i £9£8. | X1 agiasdury PY OPIPUOSS3 3 106 T8 DuEBS DRSO
9E6'1 65 9€6'LS (5 [ € 00z | coe8L | X1 agiasbury PY OPIpUOIS] 3 (08 1# Bunees pasmnzry
PG 1S 05 vig'Ls 05 oS £ [ | £ofel | X1 agi.sBur Py OPIPUODSI 310G 3 PHEe
BSROIDUHM Af LITI0 | enfeAlg BIYRAISUIO AYRAIOD SONRA POSLAIOW nsuol valy | ¥E IA |Sa0l1S .m.m awng Aun wuenIeng Mﬂizgs.




e

PREMIUM SUMMARY

Property $328,192.75 $502,020.96
Total $328,192.75 $502,020.96

Payment Terms:
L. Paymenr in full made our to Carlisle Insurance Agency, Inc.
2. Finance Nore - down payment made our to Carlisle Insurance Agency, Inc.
3. Direct Bill - Company will issue an invoice separately for (payment rerms) on (list policies).

When you provide a check as payment, you authorize us either to use informarion from your check
to make a one-time electronic fund rransfer from your account or to process the payment as a check
transaction. For inquiries, call your customer service representartive.

This insurance proposal is based on information provided. Coverage descriptions are abbreviated
and not all available coverages may have been included. The actual policy contains all of the terms
and conditions. If there is a conflict between this proposal and the policy, the policy provisions
shall prevail.

INSURED SIGNATURE PRINTED NAME DATE

Page 9



AGENDA ITEM #5



Planning and Development Services
410 W King

Kingsville, TX 78363

PH: 361-595-8093

MEMO

Date: April 19, 2023

To: Mayor and City Commissioners

From: Kobby Agyekum (Interim Director of Planning and Development Services)

Subject: Jaceb Carmona, Applicant; requesting a Special Use Permit for Indoor Recreational Use in
C2 (Retail) at ANDREWS 1, LOT S ’90 A, (FASTENAL) also known as 1911 S. Brahma
Blvd., Kingsville, TX.

The Planning and Zoning Commission meeting was held as scheduled this evening, April 19, 2023, with 4
members in attendance.

Members deliberated over the issue of granting approval for a replat Special Use Permit for Indoor
Recreational Use in C2 (Retail) at ANDREWS 1, LOT S ’90 A, (FASTENAL) also known as 1911 S.
Brahma Blvd., Kingsville, Texas to establish an indoor recreation facility. Letters were sent out to neighbors
and the City received no feedback. Commissioners, after deliberations, voted to approve the recommendation to
establish indoor recreation, the said property which is C2 (Retail). A recorded vote of all members present was
taken and Commissioners Steve Zamora, Larry Garcia, Rev. Idotha Battle and Debbie Tiffee. All agenda items
were voted ‘YES’.

The meeting was adjourned by about 6:15pm

Thank you.

yare WA

Kobby Agyekum
Interim Director of Planning and
Development Services



Planning and Development Services
410 W King

Kingsville, TX 78363

PH: 361-595-8093

MEMO

Date: April 9, 2023

To: Planning and Zoning Commission Members

From: Kobby Agyekum (Interim Director of Planning and Development Services)

Subject: Jacob Carmona, Applicant; requesting a Special Use Permit for Indoor Recreational Use in
C2 (Retail) at ANDREWS 1, LOT S ’90 A, (FASTENAL) also known as 1911 S. Brahma
Blvd., Kingsville, TX.

The applicant approached the department because they wanted to use the existing property for indoor
recreational use. The proposal as presented to the department would involve creating recreatmnal activities to
serve the City of Kingsville. The property is currently zoned C2 — Retail.

Consequently, this application is being submitted for your consideration. The department has reviewed the
application and has found no adverse impact on the environment and the development complies with the
relevant codes and Ordinances but requires a “Special Use” permit. Therefore, it is recommended that you
consider the said application and approve same since this will improve internet use within the city of Kingsville.

Thank you.

Kobby Agyekum
Interim Director of Planning and
Development Services



CITY OF KINGSVILLE
PLANNING AND ZONING DIVISION
MASTER APPLICATION

PROPERTY INFORMATION: (Please PRINT or TYPE)

Project Address |\ § Bl wvaa Rlived  Nearest Intersection

i
(Proposed) Subdivision Name Anohie we ot_ < 90 1pn Block

Legal Description:___V~eAvawd A e} 9o W Fastzne |

Existing Zoning Designation € "L: Future Land Use Plan Designation StAP

OWNER/APPLICANT INFORMATION: (Please PRINT or TYPE)

Applicant/Authorized Agent _Jwcols  Cran wmshaes  phonef 31 1 )228- Gor4 FAX

Email Address (for project correspondence only): Tedhdd 5.0 &) Gwaall.

Mailing Address 2> ) 2voia wiooo] Cityﬁm:)SV,‘/U State _7< Zip743¢3

Property Owner _|-}.2v ynea O\ak-v}!y,\;-,c/(/\ phone(gu!) 592-372° pax

Email Address (for project correspondence only): _\V1/4-

Mailing Address Lol Wlexvmdlar Ve city  Fined e State_ TZ___ zip74363

Select appropriate process for which approval is sought. Attach completed checklists with this application.

__Annexation Request No Fee __Preliminary Plat Fee Varies
__Administrative Appeal (ZBA) $250.00 __Final Plat Fee Varies
__Comp. Plan Amendment Request, $250.00 __Minor Plat $100.00
__Re-zoning Request $250.00 __Re-plat $250.00
UP Request/Renewal $250.00 __Vacating Plat $50.00
__Zoning Variance Request (ZBA) $250.00 __Development Plat $100.00
__PUD Request $250.00 __Subdivision Variance Request $25.00 ea

Please provide a basic description of the proposed project:
We lLike e ol Tkt b 4’4’69\( bt.&z.‘a&”/ﬁc'c*’ beif ‘pﬂ el "L“/
“"o "HV\ \Ou\iguk quf (Q(Adu

I hereby certify that | am the owner and /or duly authorized agent of the owner for the purposes of this
application. | further certify that | have read and examined this application and know the same to be
true and correct. If any of the information provided on this application is incorrect the permit or

Applicant’s Signature " z : ; Date: ()3~ §-2¢2J

Property Owner's $i gnatu'_ ______ R, e o Datei
Accepted by:__{asekseb Seps 0 Crr * e — e Date: B-17 2688




ZUUJT BUjjer at 1Y11 > sranma Bivd

422

11611
23999

ety Cendee
S Bank

/ o E-AilsieAve: -

S A4h St

Convenienc !
e 18239 i
A |
W ; SN
I Loy
i
]
19008 E
; 20305
G‘\(W\ |
!
i
\ 10502 E
i/
__/
r T\
Legend
1911 S Brahma Blvd
! l 1911 S Brahma Blvd Buffer |
e Streets . 25719
_ 0 50 160 200
[_] ownership —— S——— ¢ Ot
Drawn By: G. AMAYA THIS MAP 18 PO ViSUAL BURRORES ONLY, CITY OF KINGSVILLE

THE INFORMATION ON THIS GHEET MAY

Last Update; 3/17/2023 R Vlirhodte iy ii‘h%"fs
X 7 3 ¢l

Last Update: 3/17/2023 JEONIRLE F1ke mmag Ao

Note: Ownership bs labeled uestcu &0 53 uwm& NNINQ BUlLbING,
with thair PROP 10's #nd Zond Codd, B ANY DTHER FURPOBE,

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
400 W King AVé, K!n §vm TX 78383
Offcs: (361) 585+5067
Fax: (361) 595 8064

T/1
984




Kingsville Retail Group, LP
Todd Routh
11701 Bee Caves Road, STE 262
Austin, TX 78738
#11611

Harbur & Harbur LP
Robert W Hartman
3279 FM 1540
Sandia, TX 78383
#18239

CAK Kingsville LLC
25047 Toutant Beauregard RD
San Antonio, TX 78255
#19008

McAllen Baptist Temple
2001 W Trenton RD
McAllen, TX 78504
#20305

Michael J Krueger
PO Box 1538
Kingsville, TX 78364
#10502



Account
Property ID: 18861 Legal Description:
Geographic ID: 103000001001192 Zoning:
Type: Real Agent Code:
Property Use Code:
Property Use Description:
Location
Address: 1911 S BRAHMA BLVD Mapsco:

TX
Neighborhood: Map 1D:
Neighborhood CD:
Owner
Name: OHLENBUSCH HERMAN H Owner iD:

Mailing Address:

926 S 14TH ST, STE 103

% Ownership:

KINGSVILLE, TX 78363

(+) Improvement Homesite Value:
(+) Improvement Non-Homesite Value:
(+) Land Homesite Value:

(+) Land Non-Homesite Value:

(+) Agricultural Market Valuation:

(+) Timber Market Valuation:

(=) Market Value:
(-) Ag or Timber Use Value Reduction:

(=) Appraised Value:
(—) HS Cap:

(=) Assessed Value:

+ o+ 4+ o+ o+ o+

[}

Exemptions:

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N G e B B R

Yeae 2023 - Values not available

ANDREWS 1, LOT S 90' A, (FASTENAL)
c2

A3

30455
100.0000000000%

Ag / Timber Use Value
N/A
N/A



INLIILD, 14.3D VI Kieberg CALU - Property Uetalls

Owner: OHLENBUSCH HERMAN H
% Ownership: 100.0000000000%
Total Value:  N/A

Entity Descripﬁon Tax Rate Appraised Value Taxable Value Estimated Tax

GKL KLEBERG COUNTY N/A N/A ] N/A N/A
Total Tax Rate: N/A

Taxes w/Current Exemptions: N/A

Taxes w/o Exemptions: N/A

Improvement #1: COMMERCIAL State Code: F1 Living Area: 5000.0 sqft Value: N/A
Class Exterior  Year SQFT

Type Description cD Wall Built

MA  MAIN AREA RS2L EW4 1973 4000.0
ASP  ASPHALT (100%) * 2000 7980.0
MA  MAIN AREA WH2L 1973 1000.0

# Type Description Acres Sqft Eff Front Eff Depth Market Value Prod. Value |
1 F1  F1 03616 15750.00 90.00  175.00 N/A N/A |

Year Improvements Land Market Ag Valuation Appraised HS Cap Assessed
2023 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2022 $78,030 $47,250 0 125,280 $0 $125,280 |
2021 $86,230 $47,250 0 133,480 $0  $133,480
2020 $36,120 $23,625 0 59,745 $0  $59,745
2019 $35,945 $23,625 0 59,570 $0  $59,570
2018 $35,220 $23,625 0 58,845 $0  $58,845
2017 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155 |
2016 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 $0  $60,155 |
2015 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155 |
2014 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155 |
2013 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155 |
2012 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 $0  $60,155 |
2011 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 S0 $60,155 |
2010 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 $0  $60,155
2009 $36,530 $23,625 0 60,155 SO $60,155 |

httos:Morabaceedstrusautomation.comidlisntdb/Bravarty. asnw?arin iHS1RAR ReiHzD4 L1



Asmi 62023

CLASSIFIEDS

Tue Kincsie Recorn @

B I PUBLIC NOTICES & { PUBLIC NOTICES & z PUBLIC NOTICES ] ‘ PUBLIC NOTICES 8 ‘ PUBLIC NOTICES

AWb-L
B

bed by Sevtetary of Siate
127.096 Texas Eleution Cuade

PUBLIC NOTICE OF TEST OF AUTOMATIC
TABULATING EQUIPMENT

2023 at 8:30 am. by the County Clerk's Office at the Rosa Galvan Aguilar Ext, Bldg,

on all measures.

Notice is hereby given that the amontatic tabulating equiparent that witl be used in the Ricardo Independem
Schoal District Bond Election scheduled for Tucsday. May 6. 2023 will be tesied on Wednesday . April 12,
cuted at 729 E.
Yoakum Avenue Street in Kingsville, w aseertain that it will accurately count the votes cast tor all offices umd

{3/ Salvador Sonny Barrem 1]

Application has been
made with Texas Alcchol-
I8 P tesl

& | pusLic NoTices

ises Permit by Patel &
Thakor, LLC. dba Balo's

L4

for Wine and Beer Retail-
ar's permit and a Food
and Boverage Certificate
{F8) by AC Cafs Corpo-
ration DBA Freddy's Cafe
at 5372 US-T7 Kingsville,
Toxas 78363, Kleberg
County. President and
Manager and Sacretary of
said corporation Is Jose
Garnlca.

Appllcation  has been

AVISO PUBLICO DE PRUEBA DE
EQUIPO BE TABULACION AUTOMATICO

las 8:30 a.m. por la Oficina del S

todos los eurgos ¥ en todus las medidas.

Salvador Sonny Barrera 1, Kleberg County Clerk

mads with Taxas Alcohol-
e B o leql

C Meat Market,
to be located at 1102 E.
Yoakum Ave, Kingsviils,
Kleberg County, Texas
78363, Officers of sald
LLC are Ram Thakor and
Suman Dave, Managers.

Application has baen
made with the Texas Al
cohollc Baverage Com»
misslon for a Mixed
Beverage by Domingo
Plnon Reyna Jr, dba
Double 7 Management
to be | dat 1414 N

for Wine and Malt Baver-
age Retailer’s Off-Prom-

14th Street, Kingsville,
Kieberg County, Texas,

Por la presente se notifica que ¢f equipo de tabutacion automitica que s¢ utilizard cn fa Eleccion Geneal Y
Especial estd programade para el Sibado 6 de Mayo de 2023 serd probado el midreoles 12 de Abril de 2033 1
retiria del Condado en el Fdificio Rosa Galvin Aguilar Ext. ubicado en 729
E. Yvakum Avenue Street en Kingsville, para asegurarse de gue contard con precision los volos emitidos para

/3! Salvador Sonny Barrera 1L .
Salvador Sonny Barrera {11, Kleberg County Clerk

g for:your.dre: te?d
Look no further.

The Classiffeds has the latest listings
of howmes and propertics for sale,

Classifieds

www.kingsvillerecord.com

& | pusuic Noices & | pusLIc NoTices N | pustic noTices & | puBuic NoTICES & | pusric notices & | puBLic NoTIcES

PUBLIC NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ)}
KINGSVILLE INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

Kingsville Independent Schaol District ("Kingsville ISD") will receive sealed wrltten
RFQ proposals for cted pational Therapy services at the Administration
Building, 207 N. 3rd §t., Kingsville, Texas 78363, until 2:00 PM on Thursday, April
20th from intercsted providers. An RFQ Packet containing instructions for this
process will be availuble in the Administration Buliding, 207 N. 3rd St., Kingsville,
Texas 78363, during regular business hours and at KingsvilleISD.com. All potentlal
bidders are encouraged to request a Bid Packet to ensure bidders arc familiar with the
bid requirements. Sealed bids must be marked: “RFQ -~ OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY
SERVICES.” Submissions not received by the deadline specified herein and that do
not comply with the RFQ requi: will not be idered. All inquiries should
be dirccted to Dr. Peter Pitts, Chicf Financia) Officer, at (361) 592-3387. Kingsville
ISD reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals submitted in the school
district’s best Interest.

Riviera ISD is accepting bids for a van. Please see https://www.tivieraisd
us/o/riviera/page/request-for-proposals for the Request for Propesal
documents and mail all sealed bids to Riviera ISD 203 Seahawk Drive
Riviera, Tx 78379.

& | pusLic NoTicEs & | pusLic HoTicEs & | Pusiic NoTices

Bishop CISD will hold a public hearing during it’s regular school
board meeting on Monday, April 24, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. in the Luehrs
Junior High School Badger Den located at 717 E. 6th Street,
Bishop, Texas. The purpose of the public hearing is to present the
Texas Academic Performance Reports {TAPR) which combines
details of district and campus academic performance with financial
reports and information about staff, programs and demographics.

8| rusticnonices J | pusLic novices & | pusuic NoTices
PUBLIC NOTICE
KLEBERG COUNTY
HAZARD MITIGATION

Kleberg County will have an online survey from April 6th to April 20th, in order to
gather information for their Hazard Mitigation Plan, Kleberg County and the partic-
ipating jurisdictions encourage residents to take the survey online at the County’ s
website. The survey' s goalis to record public input for the plan draft Discussion will
include identifying natural hazards and hazard-related challenges facing the County in
order to begin developing a plan to preserve strengths, resolve weaknesses, and meat
future mitigation goals. [f there are any questions about the plan or survey, please call
the County at (361) 595-8585.

The Planning & Zoning C

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

of the City of King:
Wednesday, Aprl 18, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. whereln the Commission wiit discuss and/
of take action on the following tems and at which time all Interested persons will ba
heard:
Jacob Carmona, Applicant; requesting a Specisi Use Permit for Indoor Recre.
atlonal Use In C2 (Retail) at ANDREWS 1, LOT § '90 A, (FASTENAL) also known
as 1911 S. Brohma Bivd,, Kingsvilte, TX.

The meeling will be held at City Hall, 400 Wes! King, in the Helen Klebarg Groves
Community Room, If you have any questions about the ltems on the agenda, please
contact the Planning Department at (361) 595-8055.

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
The City Commission of the Clty of Kingsville will hold a Public Hearing Monday, April
24, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. whereln the City Commisslon will discuss the conslideration of
tha foflowing tem and at which time alf Interested persans will be heard:
Jaceb Carmona, Applicant; requesting a Special Use Permit for Indoor Recre-
ational Use in C2 {Retall) at ANDREWS 4, LOT S '80 A, (FASTENAL) also knewn
as 1311 S. Brahma Bivd,, Kingsviile, TX.

The meeting wilt be held at City Hall, 400 West King. Kingsvifle, Texas in tha Helan
Kleberg Groves Community Room. if you have any questions about the items on the

agenda, piease contact the Clty Secretary at {361) 535-8002.

will hold a Public Hearing

TexSCAN Week of
April 2-8, 2023

ACREAGE

LAND FOR SALE. Hunting, recreational, retirccnt,
Hill Country, Trans Pecos regions in Seuth Toxas,
30-year fixed rate, owner financing, 5% down,
www.cancheaterprisesitd.cor. 800-876-9720,

ARROWHEADS

INDIAN ARROWHEADS WANTED, Point Type:
Clovis, Yumna, Firstview & Eden. Must be old, authentic
& enbroken. Absolute 0p dollar paid~ ug 1o § figures
for one point. [ am a very serious high-cnd collector.
Call 979-218-3351.

‘Waat {o lease an area (smalf acreage) lo find Indian
arrowhieads in the sand dunes of West Texas. | will
pay up to five figurcs for the right property. Call
979-218-3351.

AUCTION

Abyotute Public Onilne Auction ~ Laredo, Texas,
9 am, Fri, April 14, 2023. 1768 FM 3138, 450+
conventional tractors, vans & more, 800-654-8280,
www.tsylorsndmantin.com.

EVENTS

New Braunfels Ares Car Club Swap Mect, April
21, 22 & 23, 2023. Comal Couaty Fai d:

Prepare for power cutages today with 8 GENERAC
home standby generator. $0 Moncy Down + Low
Monthly Payment Optioas. Request s FREE Quote, Call
now before the next power oulage: 1-855-704-8579,

LEGAL ASSISTANCE

Applying for Social Security Disability or Appealing
a Denied Claim? Call Bill Gordon & Assoc. Our
¢ase managers simplify the process & work hard 1o
help with your case. Call 1-844-494-0689 FREE
Consultation, Local Attomcys Nationwide Mail: 2420
N St NW, Washingtos DC. Office: Broward Co. FL
{TX/NM Bar)

MEDICAL

Portable Oxygen Concentrator May Be Covered
by Medicare! Reclaim independence and mobitity
with the compact design and long-lasting bat-
tery of Inogen One. Free information kit! Call
866-747-9381.

DENTAL INSURANCE from Phyticians Mutual
Insurance Company. Caverage for 350 plus procedures,
Real dental insurancs - NOT just a discount plan, Doniot
wait! Call now! Get your FREE Dental Information Kit

B0l E. Common Strect, New Braunfels,
wenw.newbrauafelsareacarclub com. Free to public.
Gates open at B am,

Texas Ladies State Chili Championship Cook-
off, Sat, Aptil 15tk 10 a.m.9 p.m., Max Starcke
Park East. Chili, Craft and Food Vendors, Music,
Silent Auction, Raffles, Family Fun! Judging
begins at 12:30 p.o. Sign up 1o be & chili cook,
hitpsi/fwww.iscco.com/rogistration.html,

Jubsevibevs ) ike
Make the Di

Ol

rence

in.com, 8304015000,

ithall ils! 1-855-901-0467
comtxpress #6258

WANTED

Need Extra Cash - { Buy RVs & Mobile Homes
~Travel Trailers, Sth Wheels, Goostnecks, Bumper
Pulls. In Any Area, Any Condition — Old/New, Dirty
or Clean! § PAY CASH. No Title — No Problem, we
can apply for onc. We go anywhere in Texas. ANR
Emtcrpriscs, 956-166-7001.

Texas Press Statewide Classified Network
221 Participating Texas Newspapers » Regional Ads

Start At $250 » Email ads@texaspress.com

NOTICE: While most advertisers are reputable, we cannot guarantee products or services advertised. We
urge readers (o use caution snd when in doub, contsct the Toxas Anomcy General at 800-621-0508% or the
Federal Trade Commission al §77-FTC-HELR The FTC web site is www.flc.gov/bizop,




ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE BY GRANTING A SPECIAL USE
PERMIT FOR INDOOR RECREATIONAL USE IN C2 (RETAIL DISTRICT)
AT ANDREWS 1, LOT S ’90 A, (FASTENAL), ALSO KNOWN AS 1911 S.
BRAHMA  BLVD., KINGSVILLE, TEXAS; AMENDING THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO ACCOUNT FOR ANY DEVIATIONS FROM
THE EXISTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR
PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, the Planning & Zoning Commission has forwarded to the City Commission it's
reports and recommendations concerning the application of Jacob Carmona, applicant on
behalf of owner Herman Ohlenbusch, for amendment to the zoning map of the City of
Kingsville;

WHEREAS, the property is currently zoned C2-Retail District and it is desired for the area
to be used as an indoor batting facility;

WHEREAS, the City Code of Ordinances, Chapter XV-Land Usage, Appendix A- Land Use
Categories states that in C2 a special use permit is required to have an indoor recreational
use (indoor batting facility); and

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville Code of Ordinances section 15-6-142 regulates special
use permits; and

WHEREAS, with proper notice to the public, public hearings were held on Wednesday,
April 19, 2023, during a meeting of the Planning & Zoning Commission, and on Monday,
April 24, 2023, during a meeting of the City Commission, in the Helen Kleberg Groves
Community Room/Commission Chambers, at City Hall, in the City of Kingsville, during
which all interested persons were allowed to appear and be heard; and

WHEREAS, a majority of the Planning & Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to APPROVE, with
no abstentions, the requested special use permit; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that this amendment would best serve
public health, necessity, and convenience and the general welfare of the City of Kingsville
and its citizens.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
KINGSVILLE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Kingsville, Texas, is amended and a
Special Use Permit is granted for an Indoor Recreational Facility (indoor batting facility) on



the premises known as 1911 S. Brahma Bivd., Kingsville, Texas, (Andrews 1, Lot S'90 A,
(Fastenal)), as more specifically describe on site plan attached as Exhibit A.

SECTION 2. That the Special Use Permit granted in Section 1 of this Ordinance is subject
the following conditions:

1. ALLOWED USE: The only uses authorized by this Special Permit other than the
permitted “C2” Retail District use is as an Indoor Recreational use (indoor batting facility).

2. STATE LICENSE: The premises or operator will be licensed or registered by the
State of Texas, if needed, to have such a business. '

3. TIME LIMIT: This Special Permit is good for the duration of the business from the
date of this ordinance unless the property is not being used for the purpose outlined in
Condition 1 or any other conditions have not been complied with.

4. SPECIAL CONDITION: The applicant shall obtain all required background checks
and business licenses. The applicant shall also cooperate with all annual fire safety, health,
and sanitation inspections, as required by the City of Kingsville and any other state agency,
and comply with any other laws or regulations regarding such business in order to maintain
compliance with state and city regulations for the indoor batting facility.

SECTION 3. That the official Zoning Map of the City of Kingsville, Texas, is amended to
reflect the amendment to the Zoning Ordinance made by Section 1 of this ordinance.

SECTION 4. That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Kingsville, Texas,
as amended from time to time, except as changed by this ordinance and any other
ordinances adopted on this date, remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 5. That to the extent that this amendment to the Zoning Ordinance represents a
deviation from the Comprehensive Plan, the Comprehensive Plan is amended to conform
to the Zoning Ordinance, as amended by this ordinance.

SECTION 6. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are
hereby expressly repealed.

SECTION 7. That publication shall be made in the official publication of the City of
Kingsville as required by the City Charter of the City of Kingsville.

INTRODUCED on this the 24th __ day of April, 2023.
PASSED AND APPROVED on thisthe __8th dayof ___May __, 2023.

Effective Date: , 2023




THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



“«avvujLpujjer UL L/ 00 D Druiinity pirvu

11611

23999

/ [ s e e e e B AHSTBAVE - o e

--8-14thSt

18238

19008
20308
10502 ;
g
1/
4 )
Legend
1911 S Brahma Blvd
[ 1911 S Brahma Bivd Buffer
Streets 719
o 0 50 100 200
[ ownership  mme— I ——
. . DISCLAIMER;
Drawn By: G. AMAYA THIS MAR 18 FOR VISUAL PURPOSES ONLY, g CI TY OF KINGS VILLE
THE INFORMATION ON THIS SHEET MAY e
CONTAIN INACCURACIES OR ERRORS. 1Y

7 ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
RESPONSIBLE IF THE INFORMATION ﬂle 400 W King Ave; Kingsville, TX 78363
CONTAINED HERE(N 18 UBED F

. - GRANY
Note: Owneiship s labeled | Gesian, coNSTRUGTION, PLANMING, HULGING, Office: (361) 595-8007
with thelr PROP [D's ahd 2oite Code. ORANY OTHER PURPOBE, g’-" Fax: (361) 595-8084

T/1
-a8ey

Last Update: 3/17/2023 THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE 15 NOT IQ




AGENDA ITEM #6



A cCept Donation

City of Kingsville
Parks & Recreation Department
TO: Mayor and City Commissioners
cC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager
FROM: Susan lvy, Director of Parks & Recreation
DATE: April 14, 2023
SUBJECT: Agenda Request — Receipt of donations for Youth Pony League

Summary: We are requesting that Commission authorize the receipt of donations in the

amount of $11,900.00 received from sponsors and donors as shown on the attached supporting
document.

Background: Kingsville Parks Youth Pony League has solicited team sponsorships and general
donations from businesses to assist with uniforms, equipment and umpire and scorekeeping

expenses. To date we have collected $ 11,900.00.

Financial Impact: These donations will increase the Pony League Budget Division 4514 in the
amount of $11,900.00.

Recommendation: We ask that Commission authorize the receipt of up to $11,900.00
donations and approve the associated budget amendment needed to record the funds in the
Parks Youth Pony League Division (4514) budget.




W 0 N O i bd W N e

L i o =
HW N RO

[y
[*

SPONSOR TRACKER
GIRLS DIVISION

\.v., B
AY (N
S\
& e

= e
0 N

ot
e

Sponsor Name Business Name Sponsor Amt Team Name/Div Reciept #
TEnbhioad Me A OO d- () Ly moa:, HI5RG2
TErantoud Nie 300 & 2 1L Oonel JM - st
NN S50 Gt [ LT e
TTexas Commundy Feu | 3082 19y w;,,_ fq%i Dets | 4915945
FRudys Vesd b | {20002 [stotm Lu  [ui770]
Billu o Mouu By Besd Ibest Coddle Co 2006 O \S [ Bichmpsis U] L1776
i 1 A ‘ , D/ : . i (. s
Dronamouts ol ABOO6 - LAdL Hoo, o o LTI
TR\catds RandnaFred | 00" U Cnaos Ula% 48
Trer Tee ot Qosted | 30y &2 Pasas 10U g 71272
COPUS Chidh _
\/:_) ;<@m§ sl Q\)s:fu ZD Q @T?ﬁ%@ﬁh\u 7174 4S
Thia Dilline, (o 7| 30* [0 Rade 417750
\_ﬁ%&& lan EXpress 20p”” Uy mm:@@&
hoBk ey U7 @byt
- = C V)
d \N«“S;mmﬂ@mﬁ%u bunesdl 200" Lo S s cdesrs
TIX Furan Pvpsay DIFoves 200~ (21 ﬁx&%%&
\Um:@ \y}w@?\. 2007 [Du \@ER&&@%&

]
(=]

THaw 7




SPONSOR TRACKER -

BOYS DIVISION

Sponsor Name Business Name Sponsor Amt Team Name/Div Reciept #
\\H @up&& Bead Coulny #szazc Cootgpher Sprengof | 200 > Noquerns 34 Gosepall | USRS
N.bmo,)o:d Sy \NQg \Le Ro O.wo_.w: 200-%0 - RellSny [oih 002433 50>
3 Cesar Silua .wm Zo.u Consdructionud 3-8« [uhteSed 12 @ Hi5R8La
a e Do e b SR
5 5 m\ @? /k 200 82 - Wew Yok Jadkees U | 475294
L I R RICTIAD Rare q'l. «@OGD/\W Y SN | =R FR
JUEATSEES Garze. Onihe Spot Point | 2300- - |0syros B U 415897
: <ing ﬁopa h tne, | 30000 -+ | Astins aU 415899
o| 0sepn Rucicl 3060 - | Vello s d8ckeds [ou] 417703
K ©_Cestanedq QuikGare | 3009 - [oavelinns (20 Tapgu o |
11 Koropolle NS RUG 2007 - | Yy foraers
12 Uinite] Home Cate] 200-00 - [Astios V2 U S 77/2
13 “Noting Pineado 2000 - QD@Q\/::Q oy 1enits
14 AYoinew ot Lo
15 Pomiiez” Woodwokd 3m-0° - | Ydvalwags ¥ ¢ 971/
17 Tllied W Cdie  [26-C2 - | Diaves 3y 4177 )
18 1 NN e Senic, 28RS [Rintes R ( Uit71,.7
& - (lexanSTie, e 130603 - [Astin s toy (17719
ol Bsguiel ?6 Undalide leavdy - [Cuis LU 117722
.\ Wiole ¥ "Eeckric m e ¥ © #mﬁf,h» W,m\, cm??.« ~ @iamﬂ o UL Heggres Yy :,M.Wm\m\

7 Umj.ﬁcl mQJ NDQ.O‘ , %\? )= J2 U

V Aas
- Y 2
7 S
£017
et




J Oy Gonzales - TAMMes Thowance  30b.0 £ubodges
/\@\\%s\@ mméib»i\&\ LLC 200" Uu Bd S7C

V sl Hakeda [ ns z007 e \MWNQ
V e weld  chdolvens ehats 3057 Gl

vV Tvns P SV v%@M\. oy \%Q\\r&
S ey s laflafaetes 5057 o AALTIE

? R et ¥
TN
i i

Ul LD



AGENDA ITEM #7



% v\é\zggﬁ P

City of Kingsville
Parks & Recreation Department

TO: Mayor and City Commissioners

cC: Mark McLaughlin, City Manager

FROM: Susan lvy, Director of Parks & Recreation
DATE: April 14, 2023

SUBJECT: Agenda Request - Receipt of donations for Youth Pony League

Summary: We are requesting that Commission authorize the receipt of donations in the

amount of $11,900.00 received from sponsors and donors as shown on the attached supporting
document.

Background: Kingsville Parks Youth Pony League has solicited team sponsorships and general

donations from businesses to assist with uniforms, equipment and umpire and scorekeeping

expenses. To date we have collected $ 11,900.00.

Financial Impact: These donations will increase the Pony League Budget Division 4514 in the
amount of $11,900.00.

Recommendation: We ask that Commission authorize the receipt of up to $11,900.00
donations and approve the associated budget amendment needed to record the funds in the
Parks Youth Pony League Division (4514) budget.




W 0 N O U1 b W N

o e e et el el hed e
O W N B BB W N = O

SPONSOR TRACKER e
GIRLS DIVISION o

Sponsor Name Business Name Sponsor Amt Team Name/Div Reciept #
TEndhrend Me A O 4L mﬁmm SIS AG 2
Tomnreid Nle S0 O 2L obeling s 5362,
NN Sy CCQOd LY e
TTeas Communidy Feu | 30082 -y mw%,_ nxa?).t ﬂ%m Y5945
TALAG s Vet lomn] [200: 02 [storm Ga [Ui176
.W....//,\._ ) ﬁ/?s,.@_y Resl et th Me Co B0G: 0 \Wm [ Blchmps{o L] L1770l
: . { .
Mronumous Dol 200-  |lady Hog's AN Y
\\ﬂ!whn:&\.ﬁo ﬁﬁ?r(/ﬂv\\»ﬂ@mkm\ f\\wma\Nm .m.c Q (L Q\Snﬁo@ S _R,, mwmfmw
e Tre ok @ostl | 306 | BAsgys (0 U 111272
COPUS Chidl
\/:22&5? sy (\.::Ev 20D rv ﬁ?.g«@?\u 17945
hﬂ:@ Dl LNy (o 350 [0 % \&mw«r\ 4177849
\.,w\g&md s EXxpress 50p”” Yy m}:\mv\m
b rumnas [ 4 @by Az
[ I L
g \N««R\.Rm«@%@ bineedd 3007 1ol S S cleers
TIX Furm o DI Foves 2007 [ 244 Xplotums
\\@\:@_ 9\@@?\ 250" [Du b\t&&\w&m\w

S

L%,m\c\v ;\t 4




N o B W N N

™ o o,

()

T~ W B N ! s W

SPONSOR TRACKER .}
BOYS DIVISION :

&

A b rein

Sponsor Name Business Name Sponsor Amt Team Name/Div Reciept #
: Coulny e LOriatgphet Spreng el | 200 oo Noguens 3 Coscbatll | Y1535
..mmOjQ.d SilNQ \so Ro Omo..@: 30-® - [ RenSox b 0D2433.002
Ceaar Silua ) Zo.m Consdruction,iid 300« [uhteSa 12 W Yi5R3,
I Jiopt i U] R
5 I e = 2o, 02 New Motk JanKeas U | 475794
e AT RO = P e S Ne e 1O U 5
Mercas Gaze. Ondhe spot @91. 200- AsyroS 2 U 415397
ing Ranch Ine, | 30000 Astins Uy 415 399
Josepn Locicl  Joe Roc) State Tagh ~ 30680 - | Nelloedackeds 1od] 4917703
< ©_Oestaneda Quick e | 3009 - agelinns (20 LT O |
Corogortle NeA S RUE 2007 . | Yy Poraers
Unite ] Home Cafe| 20060 - [Ashios \2 U Y1 77/2
Chfisting Pinenda 20000 &D;O&%Q ou 1y71ls
AYGLneuw ot Lo
Pomiiez” Woodwoks] am-02 - [VAva\ags ¥ [di71l ]
Bllies W Chte  [2%6-22 - [ Diaues 3( Y1771
T D erance Sewiges 228 Riaves R U Uit71.7
exanS e, "Mole | 300.03 - Akt 1oy G719
Pl B el New UndZ G2 l20n D - [ Culns LU 41122
Triole £ Cleekic T .@.h 2 Tleckic uwmmwﬁmﬁm: @.ﬁsmﬁ b xgmm&v Y :M.\Nmr\m\
o M. Sandoccl ?,m..c N 2p0.80 ] )2 U /

- {1 7
; ¢
L. :

Q, !
g




J Oy Gonzcles - TAMe s Thowance 300 Lupodgers

IRchiame Cgupmad LLC  FOOT U LT

V sl Haknla [ ns 2 @_ &

J e Weld  chdol rens ehaty 3007 GQ

v Tvns P Sve wm@w&. e

e 508 (o AMTIEE
\ H.,w\w,._w \ \ L




ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET TO ACCEPT AND
EXPEND YOUTH PONY LEAGUE DONATIONS FOR UNIFORMS, EQUIPMENT, AND
UMPIRE AND SCOREKEEPER SERVICES.

WHEREAS, it was unforeseen when the budget was adopted that there would be a need for
funding for these expenditures this fiscal year.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Kingsville that the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 budget be amended as follows:

CITY OF KINGSVILLE
DEPARTMENT EXPENSES
BUDGET AMENDMENT — BA#42

Dept Dept Name Account Name Account Budget Budget
No. Number Increase Decrease
Fund 001 — General Fund
Revenues
4514 | Softball League | Donations-Softball 58003 $11,900
League

Expenditures

4514 | Softball League | Professional Services 31400 $11,900

[To amend the City of Kingsville FY 22-23 budget to accept and expend Youth Pony League
donations for uniforms, equipment, and umpire and scorekeeper services. Funding will come
from the donations received for the stated purpose.]

THAT all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the
extent of such conflict only.

THAT if for any reason any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision
of this ordinance shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect any other section, paragraph, subdivision, clause,
phrase, word or provision of this ordinance, for it is the definite intent of this City Commission

1



that every section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, word or provision hereof be given
full force and effect for its purpose.

V.

THAT this Ordinance shall not be codified but shall become effective on and after adoption and
publication as required by law.

INTRODUCED on this the 24th day of April 2023.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the day of May 2023.

EFFECTIVE DATE:

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



AGENDA ITEM #8



S VLl dndy I TV OUVERNVIEN T LIS UMAF T Y90, INTENROUVERNMEN (AL SQUFFURK T AGRKEEMENIED

GOVERNMENT CODE
TITLE 7. INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS
CHAPTER 793. INTERGOVERNMENTAL SUPPORT AGREEMENTS

Sec. 793.001. DEFINITION. 1In this chapter, "local government" has
the meaning assigned by Section 791.003.

Added by Acts 2021, 87th Leg., R.S., Ch. 89 (S5.B. 780), Sec. 1, eff. May
24, 2021.

Sec. 793.002. AUTHORITY TO ENTER AGREEMENT. 1In accordance with the
provisions that apply to an interlocal contract under Chapter 791, a local
government may enter into an intergovernmental support agreement with a
branch of the armed forces of the United States under the National Defense
Authorization Act (10 U.S.C. Section 2679) to provide installation-support

services to a military installation located in this state.

Added by Acts 2021, 87th Leg., R.S., Ch. 89 (S.B. 780), Sec. 1, eff. May
24, 2021.

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.793.htm

7



RESOLUTION #2023-

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT BETWEEN NAVAL AIR
STATION KINGSVILLE AND THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE FOR ROAD REPAIR
AND MAINTENANCE, LIFT STATION MAINTENANCE, AND SOLID WASTE
SERVICES; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Naval Air Station-Kingsville (‘NASK”) is located on the southeast
side of the City in the extra-territorial jurisdiction of the City;

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville (“City”) and NASK assist each other when able
to do so;

WHEREAS, the City and NASK currently have Memorandums of Understanding
to assist one another with Fire and Police protection, and the City provides NASK
with water through a separate agreement;

WHEREAS, the Texas Legislature approved Texas Government Code Chapter
793-Intergovernmental Support Agreement (“IGSA”) that allows local
governments, like the City, to provide installation support services to a military
installation located in this state;

WHEREAS, pursuant to that authority, the City and NASK have prepared this

IGSA for road repair and maintenance, lift station maintenance, and solid waste
services to NASK;

WHEREAS, the IGSA has a ten-year term but renews annually subject to annual

appropriation and the parties’ consent and has been reviewed by both parties
and is ready for approval;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of
Kingsville, Texas:

THAT the Kingsville City Manager is authorized and directed as an act of the City
of Kingsville, Texas to enter an Intergovernmental Support Agreement between
Naval Air Station Kingsville and the City of Kingsville for road repair and
maintenance, lift station maintenance, and solid waste services in accordance
with Exhibit A hereto attached and made a part hereof.



THAT all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are
repealed to the extent of such conflict only.

I
THAT this Resolution shall be and become effective on and after adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the City Commission on the
24th day of __April , 2023.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney



INTERGOVERNMENTAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
NAVAL AIR STATION KINGSVILLE

AND

THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE
FOR

ROAD REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE, LIFT STATION MAINTENANCE, AND
SOLID WASTE SERVICES.

This is an Intergovernmental Support Agreement (IGSA) between
the Department of the Navy, a federal agency, as represented by
and through the Installation Commanding Officer at Naval Air
Station (NAS) Kingsville, and the City of Kingsville. NAS
Kingsville and the City of Kingsville are individually referred
to as "Party" and collectively referred to as the "Parties".

1. BACKGROUND: The Parties enter into this IGSA so that the
City of Kingsville can provide road repair and maintenance,
lift station maintenance, and solid waste services to NAS
Kingsville.

2. AUTHORITIES: This IGSA is entered into by NAS Kingsville,
pursuant to 10 U.S.C. § 2679, and by the City of Kingsville
pursuant to TX Government Code Section 793.002.

a. 10 U.s.C. § 2679 permits the Navy to enter into an IGSA
on a sole source basis with a State or local government provided
the IGSA will serve the best interest of the Navy by enhancing
mission effectiveness or creating efficiencies or economies of
scale, including reducing costs, and when the State or local
government providing the installation services already provides
such services for its own use. This IGSA serves the best
interests of the Department of the Navy by creating efficiencies
and economies of scale that will reduce cost of services for
NASK. This IGSA will streamline and make more efficient award
and execution of routine and recurring projects, in addition to
cost savings achieved through economies of scale. The City of
Kingsville would manage and execute road repair and
maintenance, 1lift station maintenance, and solid waste services
for NAS Kingsville. The public partner, the City of Kingsville,
will work in concert with the Installation’s Public Works
Office to ensure compliance with all applicable Federal and
State standards, laws, and regulations.



b. The Secretary of the Navy has delegated the signature
authority to execute a non-Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR)
IGSA on behalf of the Navy, through the Assistant Secretary of
the Navy, who further delegated approval authority for IGSAs to
Commander, Navy Installations Command (CNIC). CNIC further
delegated IGSA approval authority for IGSAs to Region Commanders
and Installation Commanding Officers (ICO), as appropriate.
Based on these delegations, the Regional Commander (REGCOM) of
CNRSE, is the Navy's representative and has approval and
signature authority for this IGSA.

c. Texas Government Code § 793.002 permits the City of
Kingsville to enter into this agreement to provide the
Department of the Navy, as represented by the REGCOM / ICO,
CNRSE, with support services that City of Kingsville already
provides for its own use. The City of Kingsville and the
Department of the Navy meet the definition of a "public
agency".

PURPOSE: This IGSA is made by and between the Parties to provide
road repair and maintenance, lift station maintenance, and solid
waste services on NAS Kingsville using City of Kingsville
personnel and contracts executed by the City of Kingsville as
mutually agreed upon. The purpose of this IGSA is to outline the
roles and responsibilities of the Parties, identify the services
to be furnished by the City of Kingsville, the prices to be paid
by the United States, and the appropriate reimbursement,
indemnification, and liability procedures.

d. This IGSA is made by the Parties to enable the City of
Kingsville to provide road repair and maintenance, lift station
maintenance, and solid waste services on NAS Kingsville. NAS
Kingsville sees this IGSA as an opportunity to further grow and
strengthen the relationship between the Parties. This IGSA
allows the City of Kingsville to assist NAS Kingsville more
efficiently and economically meet their mission requirements.

e. This IGSA is the result of the Parties' mutual efforts
to reduce costs, create efficiencies, build relationships,
and enhance mission effectiveness.

3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES: Responsibilities of the
Parties, in the execution of this IGSA for roadway maintenance
and repailr services, are provided below.

a. NAS Kingsville will be responsible for:

(1) Identifying requirements and jointly developing a
requirements package for a prospective task order with
the City of Kingsville. Requirements include, but are not
limited to:



° Road repair and maintenance
e Lift station maintenance
* Solid waste services

(2) Issuing a request for proposal for a prospective
task order and performing a technical evaluation on a
prospective task order.

(3) Issuing a task order to City of
Kingsville for services.

(4) Participating in a kickoff meeting prior to
executing services associated with a task order.

(5) Ensure compliance with required federal standards
as well as applicable City of Kingsville standards,
jointly performing inspections and acceptance of work,
with the City of Kingsville, in the performance of work
execution to deliver the services associated with a task
order, pursuant to the standards set forth therein.

(6) Providing payment for services provided or
coordinated by the City of Kingsville.

(7) Performing a meeting of each task order with
the City of Kingsville.

(8) Procurement of repair parts needed for lift
station repairs.

b. The City of Kingsville is responsible for:

(1) Jointly developing a requirements package for a
prospective task order with NAS Kingsville.

(2) Determining an ability to support a request
through an organic capability, through the use of an
existing contract or through competitive bidding.

(3) Developing a cost estimate for services provided
through an organic capability or through competitive
bidding.

(4) Issuing a request for proposal for services
pursued through competitive bidding and reviewing bids
received from competitive bidding.

(5) Providing a recommendation and submitting the
cost estimate from competitive bidding to NAS



Kingsville. Performing the service associated with a
task order through organic capability or through
contract fulfillment.

(6) Managing and executing projects whether
performed by City of Kingsville personnel or
subcontractors. Having a single executing agency will
standardize the acquisition strategy and provide
eccnomies of scale as well as lessen the administrative
burden.

(7) Ensure compliance with required federal standards,
as well as applicable City of Kingsville standards in
jointly, along with NAS Kingsville performing inspections
and acceptance of work in the performance of work
execution to deliver the services associated with a task
order pursuant to the standards set forth therein.

(8) Participating in a kickoff meeting priocr to
executing services and providing quality assurance -
consistent with the City of Kingsville's standard of
quality - during performance of the work associated with
the service.

(9) Billing for services performed.

(10) Performing a meeting of each task order with
NAS Kingsville.

c. Both Parties are responsible for:

(1) Cooperating to ensure mutual goals are met and
issues are promptly resolved.

(2) Promptly notifying the other party of any concerns
and communicating openly and transparently to ensure any
concerns or issues are promptly dealt with in order to not
impede performance under this IGSA.

(3) Resolving to work out disputes to the extent
feasible before initiating termination procedures.

4. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE: To the extent permitted by the laws
governing each Party, the Parties shall protect personal
information and maintain the confidentiality of other exchanged
information when requested in writing to do so by the providing
Party. The Parties will comply with public requests for
information related to this IGSA pursuant to the Freedom of
Information Act, 5 U.S.C. §552 and the Texas Public Information Act,
Texas Government Code Chapter 552.



a. If the City of Kingsville receives a request for
information about this IGSA made under either the Freedom of
Information Act or Texas Public Information Act, Texas
Government Code Chapter 552, the City of Kingsville will notify
NASK points of contact (POC) designated in this IGSA. If NAS
Kingsville receives a request for information about this IGSA
under Freedom of Information Act, the installation will notify
City of Kingsville POCs designated in this IGSA.

5. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES: In exercising their respective
rights, powers, and obligations under this IGSA, each Party acts
in an independent capacity. No Party shall represent itself as
the agent, officer, or employee of any other Party. FEach Party
is responsible for all costs of its personnel and contractors,
including pay and benefits, support, and travel. Each Party is
responsible for supervision and management of its personnel.
Neither Party shall provide, without the prior written consent
of the other Party, any contractor or employee with a release
that waives or purports to waive any right a Party may have to
seek relief or redress against that contractor or employee.

6. GENERAL PROVISIONS:

a. ADMINISTRATION. This IGSA shall be mutually administered
by the Parties. The IGSA administrators will identify personnel
in City of Kingsville and at NAS Kingsville to coordinate and
manage the provision of services and the payment for services
provided by the City of Kingsville under this IGSA.

b. POINTS OF CONTACT: The following points of contact (POC)
will be used by the Parties to communicate in the implementation
of this IGSA. Each Party may change its POC and will provide
email notice to all POCs when a POC is changed.

(1) For NAS Kingsville:

CAPT Eric Bromley
Installation Commanding Officer

(2) For the City of Kingsville:

Mark McLaughlin
City Manager



c. CORRESPONDENCE: from time to time, can be directed to:
ATTN: NAS Kingsville Public Works Officer
And, if to the City of Kingsville, to:
ATTN: William “Bill” Donnell, Public Works Director

d. RECORDS: The Parties shall follow established cost
principles and procedures in determining allowable costs and
payments under this IGSA and shall maintain books, records,
documents, or other evidence pertaining to costs and expenses
under this IGSA for a minimum of three years after the
expiration of the IGSA. To the extent permitted under applicable
laws and regulations, the Parties shall each allow the other to
inspect such books, records, documents, or other evidence. Each
Party shall maintain records of each purchase order and all
payments made therefore in accordance with its governing record
retention rules.

7. FINANCIAL DETAILS:

a. COSTS: As of the effective date of this IGSA, the costs
for all efforts to be ordered hereunder are estimated to be at
an annual cost of $731,074.04. This amount is not intended to
represent the total financial responsibilities nor the actual
needs of NAS Kingsville in a given year. Actual requirements for
a given year will be reflected in orders and dependent upon
availability of funds.

b. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS: This IGSA does not document the
obligation of funds between the Parties. The obligation of funds
by the Parties, resulting from this IGSA, is subject to the
availability of funds pursuant to the DoD Financial Management
Regulation. ©No provision of this IGSA will be interpreted to
require obligation or payment of funds in violation of the Anti-
Deficiency Act, Section 1341 of Title 31, United States Code.
Furthermore, any obligation of funds in support of this
IGSA will be accomplished using the SF-1034 (Public Voucher for
Purchases and Services Other Than Personal), and upon the
certification of an amount of funds by a proper funds certifying
officer appointed by CNIC, the signature of an authorized
Approving Official, and proper receipt and acceptance of the
order for the installation support service by NAS Kingsville
for the scope of services delineated on the individual order.

c. NO LIMITATION. Nothing in this IGSA shall limit or
prohibit the ability of either Party from contracting with other
persons or entities for the provision of the same or similar
services. Payment of any unquestioned bill or item from a bill



shall be made within thirty days of receipt by the Party for
whom such services were provided. The annual costs and payments
made pursuant to such purchase orders shall not exceed such
purchasing agent's authority to contract for such services
without approval by the governing body of the Party from whom
payment is to be made.

d. BILLING AND PAYMENT. NAS Kingsville will pay the City
of Kingsville for orders for services executed under this
IGSA. The City of Kingsville will bill NAS Kingsville, through
the DoD's Procurement Integrated Enterprise Environment (PIEE)
Wide Area Workflow (WAWF) application, as services are
completed. Progress payments will be processed monthly
through WAWE.

8. PAYMENT: Payment shall be based on services provided as set
forth in this Agreement. Pursuant to the Office of Management
and Budget 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform Administration Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
taxes that NAS Kingsville is legally required to pay are
allowable, except for self-assessed taxes that
disproportionately affect federal programs. NAS Kingsville
shall not reimburse City of Kingsville for any taxes in which
the legal incidence of the tax falls on the Navy.

a. The Government will make payment in accordance with the
Prompt Payment Act (31 USC 3903) and implementing regulations.
Interest shall be paid for late payments as required by the Act
and shall be paid at the rate established by the Secretary of
the Treasury for disputes under the Contract Disputes Act of
1978.

b. Direct and indirect cost reconciliation will be
performed annually in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200.

c. The obligation of funds by NAS Kingsville is subject
to the availability of appropriated funds.

9. REVIEW OF IGSA: This prospective IGSA will be reviewed
annually on or around the anniversary of its effective date for
financial impacts and to ensure the IGSA remains mutually
beneficial for the Parties.

10. TERM OF IGSA: This IGSA is being entered into for a term not
to exceed ten (10) years. This IGSA automatically terminates 10
years from the effective date. A new IGSA may be executed for
subsequent periods not to exceed ten years.



a. The initial term of this agreement shall be for one
federal fiscal year from the last dated signature on this
agreement and renewable for successive, one-year option periods
for nine additional years. The United States shall only be
obligated for one year of performance under the agreement, as it
has no authority to obligate additional periods of performance
without appropriation of adequate funds by the Congress. The
United States shall only be obligated for an additional year of
performance upon receipt of such funds, and only upon written
notice by NAS Kingsville to City of Kingsville of its intent to
proceed with the option for an additional year of performance.
Each party shall give notice to the other party as to their
intent to renew.

b. This Agreement may be terminated by mutual written
agreement of the Parties at any time. Except as otherwise
specified in this Agreement, either party can unilaterally
terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) days written notice to
the other party.

11. MODIFICATION OF IGSA: This prospective IGSA may only be
modified by the written agreement of the Parties which must be
duly signed by their authorized representatives.

12. SUSPENSION OF IGSA: The United States reserves the right to
suspend performance of the agreement in event of emergencies,
mobilizations, national security reasons, or for other reasons
outside the control of the United States. In the event of a
suspension, compensation for the City of Kingsville will
continue subject to availability of funds and work not affected
by the suspension. The City of Kingsville reserves the right to
suspend performance of the agreement in the event of
emergencies, force major events or for other reasons outside
the control of the City of Kingsville.

13. TERMINATION:

a. MUTUAL. The prospective IGSA may be terminated by
mutual written agreement at any time. In the event of mutual
termination, no rights, responsibilities, benefits, or
liabilities shall accrue to either Party.

b. UNILATERAL. Each Party reserves the right to
unilaterally terminate this agreement for its convenience upon
60 calendar days written notice to the POCs designated in this
IGSA. When notified by the other Party of the termination, the
Parties shall immediately negotiate a separate Termination
Agreement and Schedule to define the roles and responsibilities
and to mitigate impacts and all costs caused by the termination.
The Parties recognize that the obligations and debts under this



IGSA are part of a task order, and they are incurred as services
are provided. Any obligations or debts incurred hereunder prior
to termination shall become immediately due and payable by the
withdrawing Party upon termination. The withdrawing Party shall
not be entitled to a refund or credit for any sums paid or
incurred under this IGSA prior to termination.

14. APPLICABLE LAW:

a. The Parties shall comply with all applicable federal,
state, and local laws, federal executive orders, and federal
rules and regulations applicable to its performance under this
IGSA. If any federal statute expressly prescribes policies or
requirements that differ from the terms and conditions of this
IGSA, the provisions of the federal statute shall govern. If
there is a conflict between federal and state law or any
municipal laws, federal law will control.

b. This IGSA is not governed by standard acquisition
contracting methods of competitive bidding as delineated in the
Federal Acquisition Regulation and supplements thereto. City
of Kingsville may provide services hereunder organically.
However, where City of Kingsville shall provide services
through a contract, the contract must be awarded through
purchasing procedures compliant with state law.

15. DISPUTES:

a. If the Parties are unable to agree about interpreting or
applying a material term of either this IGSA or an order, the
Parties agree to engage in an effort to reach mutual agreement
in the proper interpretation of this IGSA or the order,
including amendment or termination of this IGSA or the order, as
necessary, oOr by escalating the dispute within their respective
organizations.

b. As a condition precedent to a Party bringing any action
for breach of this IGSA, that Party must first notify the other
Party in writing of the nature of the purported breach and seek
in good faith to resolve the dispute through negotiation. If the
Parties cannot resolve the dispute through negotiation, they may
agree to a mutually acceptable method of non-binding alternative
dispute resolution with a qualified third party acceptable to
the Parties. Each Party must pay an equal share of any costs
incurred by the use of a third party.

c. If any third-party dispute or litigation relates to, or
potentially affects a Party's ability to perform under this
IGSA, the Parties agree to promptly notify each other of such
dispute or litigation. The existence of such a dispute or
litigation shall not excuse the Parties from performance



pursuant to this IGSA.

d. If any dispute between the Parties arising out of this
IGSA requires consideration of the law, the rights and
obligations of the Parties shall be interpreted and determined
according to the substantive and procedural laws of the United
States of America.

16. LIABILITY: Each Party is responsible for the action of
its agents, officers, and employees. Nothing in this IGSA is
intended to modify the immunity held by either the United
States Navy or the City of Kingsville. Furthermore, nothing
in this IGSA is intended, nor may it be construed, to create
any rights, confer any benefits, or relieve any liability, of
any kind whatsoever, in any third person not a party to this
IGSA.

17. COOPERATION OF PARTIES: The Parties recognize that it is
essential to cooperate fully concerning the handling of
information and provision of services contemplated by this IGSA.
In connection with this IGSA, the Parties therefore agree to
provide any data, information, and documentation reasonably
necessary for the other Party to perform its responsibilities
under the terms of this IGSA.

18. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: The terms, covenants, and conditions
contained herein shall apply to and bind the successors and
assigns of the Parties.

19. WAIVER: No waiver of the breach of any of the covenants,
terms, restrictions, or conditions of this IGSA by either Party
shall be construed to be a waiver of any succeeding breach of
the same or other covenants, terms, restrictions, or conditions
of this IGSA. No delay or omission of either Party in exercising
any right, power, or remedy herein provided in the event of
default shall be construed as a waiver thereof or acquiescence
therein or be construed as a waiver of a variation of any of
the terms of this IGSA.

20. SEVERABILITY PROVISION: If any term or portion of this IGSA
is held to be invalid, illegal, void, or otherwise unenforceable
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions
of this IGSA shall continue in full force and effect.

21. SIGNATURE IN COUNTERPARTS: This IGSA may be executed in
counterparts by each of the Parties. The IGSA is effective as to
each signatory Party on its execution and, for purposes of
enforcement, true copies of signatures shall be deemed to be
original signatures.



22. ENTIRE IGSA: With the exception of order, invoices, or
payment documentation which may be subsequently executed, it is
understood and agreed that this IGSA embodies the entire IGSA
between the Parties.

23. REVIEW FOR LEGAL ADEQUACY. Each Party to this IGSA
acknowledges and agrees that this IGSA has been reviewed by each
Party's respective legal counsel for legal adeguacy.

24. EFFECTIVE DATE: This IGSA takes effect on the day after
the last Party signs.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this IGSA as of
the dates stated below.

Naval Air Station Kingsville: City of Kingsville:
Signed: Signed:
Installation Commanding Officer City Manager

Date: Date:




AGENDA ITEM #9



City of Kingsville
Legal Department

TO: - Mayor and City Commissioners

CC: Mark MclLaughlin, City Manager

FROM: Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney

DATE: April 14, 2023

SUBJECT: Resolution regarding AEP Texas Inc. DCRF Rate Increase

Summary: On April 5, 2023, AEP Texas Inc. (“AEP” or “Company”) filed an Application
to Amend its Distribution Cost Recovery Factor (‘DCRF”) to increase distribution rates
within each of the cities in their service area. In the filing, the Company asserts that it is
seeking an increase in distribution revenues of approximately $39.7 million (an
approximately $1.63 increase to the average residential customer's bill from the rates
approved in the Company’s most recent DCRF case). Moreover, the Company is
seeking to impose Rider Mobile TEEE Facilities (‘Rider”) to recover revenue related to
mobile generation unit leasing and operation. The Rider would recover approximately
$30.67 million (an approximately $1.30 increase to the average customer’s bill).

The resolution authorizes the City to join with the Cities Served by AEP (“Cities”) to
evaluate the filing, determine whether the filing complies with law, and if lawful, to
determine what further strategy, including settlement, to pursue.

Background:

The purpose of the Resolution is to deny the DCRF application proposed by AEP.

AEP made a similar filing about this time last year seeking an increase in distribution
revenues. The City joined other cities in approving resolutions to deny and examine the
filing which resulted in a lower final distribution rate than initially proposed.

Purpose of this Resolution:




City of Kingsville
Legal Department

Explanation of “Be It Resolved” Paragraphs:

1. This section authorizes the City to participate with Cities as a party in the
Company’s DCREF filing, PUC Docket No. 54824.

2. This section authorizes the hiring of Lloyd Gosselink and consultants to
review the filing, negotiate with the Company, and make recommendations to the City
regarding reasonable rates. Additionally, it authorizes Cities to direct any necessary
administrative proceedings or court litigation associated with an appeal of this
application filed with the PUC.

3. This paragraph finds that the Company’s application is unreasonable and
should be denied.

4. This section states that the Company’s current rates shall not be changed.

5. The Company will reimburse Cities for their reasonable rate case
expenses. Legal counsel and consultants approved by Cities will submit monthly
invoices that will be forwarded to AEP for reimbursement.

6. This section recites that the Resolution was passed at a meeting that was
open to the public and that the consideration of the Resolution was properly noticed.

7. This section provides that AEP and counsel for Cities will be notified of the
City’s action by sending a copy of the approved and signed Resolution to counsel.

Financial Impact: None. Due to the type of filing, cities are entitled to reimbursement
of their legal and consulting expenses. Thus, there will be no direct charge to the City
as a participant in the rate case.

Recommendation: Approve the resolution to deny the DCRF application proposed by
AEP.




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS
FINDING THAT AEP TEXAS INC.’S APPLICATION TO
AMEND ITS DISTRIBUTION COST RECOVERY FACTORS
TO INCREASE DISTRIBUTION RATES WITHIN THE CITY
SHOULD BE DENIED; AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION
WITH THE CITIES SERVED BY AEP TEXAS;
AUTHORIZING HIRING OF LEGAL COUNSEL; FINDING
THAT THE CITY'S REASONABLE RATE CASE
EXPENSES SHALL BE REIMBURSED BY THE
COMPANY; FINDING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH
THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE
PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW; REQUIRING NOTICE
OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE COMPANY AND LEGAL
COUNSEL.

WHEREAS, the City of Kingsville, Texas (“City”) is an electric utility customer of AEP
Texas Inc. (*AEP” or “Company”), and a regulatory authority with an interest in the rates
and charges of AEP; and

WHEREAS, the City is a member of the Cities Served by AEP (“Cities”), a membership
of similarly situated cities served by AEP that have joined together to efficiently and cost
effectively review and respond to electric issues affecting rates charged in AEP’s service
area; and

WHEREAS, on or about April 5, 2023 AEP filed with the City an Application to Amend its
Distribution Cost Recovery Factor (“DCRF”), PUC Docket No. 54824, seeking to
increase electric distribution rates by approximately $39.7 million (an approximately
$1.63 increase to the average residential customer’s bill from the rates approved in the
Company’s most recent DCRF case) and impose a Rider Mobile TEEE Facilities to
recover $30.67 million (an approximately $1.30 increase to the average residential
customer’s bill) related to mobile generation facilities; and

WHEREAS, all electric utility customers residing in the City will be impacted by this
ratemaking proceeding if it is granted; and

WHEREAS, Cities are coordinating its review of AEP’s DCRF filing with designated
attorneys and consultants to resolve issues in the Company’s application; and

WHEREAS, Cities members and attorneys recommend that members deny the DCRF.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF KINGSVILLE, TEXAS:

7325330.1 1



Section 1. That the City is authorized to participate with Cities in PUC Docket No.
54824.

Section 2. That subject to the right to terminate employment at any time, the City
hereby authorizes the hiring of the law firm of Lloyd Gosselink and consultants to
negotiate with the Company, make recommendations to the City regarding reasonable
rates, and to direct any necessary administrative proceedings or court litigation
associated with an appeal of this application filed with the PUC.

Section 3. That the rates proposed by AEP to be recovered through its DCRF and
Rider Mobile TEEE Facilities charged to customers located within the City limits, are
hereby found to be unreasonable and shall be denied.

Section 4. That the Company shall continue to charge its existing rates to customers
within the City.

Section 5. That the City’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed in full
by AEP within 30 days of presentation of an invoice to AEP.

Section 6. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which
this Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law and the public notice
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required.

Section 7. That a copy of this Resolution shall be sent to Leila Melhem, American
Electric Power Service Corporation, 400 West 15% Street, Suite 1520, Austin, Texas
78701 and to Thomas Brocato, General Counsel to the Cities, at Lloyd Gosselink
Rochelle & Townsend, 816 Congress Ave., Suite 1900, Austin, Texas 78701.

Sam R. Fugate, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Valenzuela, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Courtney Alvarez, City Attorney

7325330.1

o



AGENDA ITEM #10



ove {5 w1015 ew) 20) pup U Inand AIoN.

mgr T e ko T v

vn-.? 40 pssn oq jou eys puv ssodind Auv tof

; T juswnoap Asains (vl ¥ 5w Godn pafiss 4o
_ | pupiosss +q 30U _yeys yuwamacp Yy Kreupmiyeid

“dyrmnmd piow

207 0t N AYa
o 1BWq W Auodued AyERI PYHLN Souer © T) Yupdwog Py Jeeies
o OO UOAIR AVM 4Q W SI05Q PIOPIMOURD oA JRWAAIA HUL
ax jo Mjunoy
somy jo W0l
saboen
#5
‘ T WIS OL LON ‘d¥R TIVY3A0 abouen ‘wospn Asw A5
i TR T o dop "o s
-

UAOoPE0 PUS YoTAENSP 0 BE0dind
w0 o) spow SN dow WY W PUO FEERD NG JO BEN PUO Lolisde
UORDIOY B J) R DA S0 0} PADID WD Umous 50 thaussos
o Latisos men ofjnd e O} BRIOSPR) WO Ukows BeenE JoN) fuavus
B5 pappmom pub apuo] piox poy w4y} el jord Bupbas) ey
IO VLCPUMDG P UGS PSOKGUR IPUDF BUL JO GRS €0 B ) 10U SRS
Aqemy Awodied ALEON] PRNUT) SBITL © OTI wdwe) HU0T WERKWRS

2wy yo Kuney
=) jo WoiS

5809, VM seusor] woxay
YU wmues g wpg

T i L

3013018 puosesajosd punas A WeIIELEY
Sousbigp siqoucEIel Db WD Wi $USHORGo YINd RleND O) PuD oW Wi 50 ¥AUed oRl
puB 167 [0 joa 0} 19521uCS JepUn Pebsbus Ussq BB | JaIRQ PUD UNIOULOLY WEPROUS Ll jo 1q
w1 0} Jaeaos pud wnA # BB UON3AI AW Mpun Punad W] Uo PO Aains O Woy dow Buobric)
R prodesd MoU BB UG s0) JoAeAIN BB Pusiksejsid BeRIsDeY O oRme) G Wwug 1

aseny jo yunos
ame] jo oIS

findeg
4

pen| e Bacepy

Wy dnoy
8

o Kyunoy e Jo TpRIN dow s W ur  ¥opo 1 TToT
B RO AW U PR 0} P O GONDOHUIGIND JO BIDIYAND EM WNM 'I0Z
158 Bustassy owh 10a) A Aamy op “Eorsy Alunon Smer o A W io NS
DNIGITH 40 ALNNOD
it

Rsudiz by
ag

€202 Jo kop ——" i sy ‘wowy ‘aarbuiy 4o A0 ) 10 Budld
10 J013aag WA 4q peioidde (wig Abuimig) UERPS eBUY D Jelewes jo 10K SN} SL

OUIETH 40 ALNOGD
SYOAL 40 LviS

oty

yoeay B MK U YD oD 3w
PO 55 10K By ¥ERM Pk SUD §RU PO PISe 9Q (BN [oaeadde i 10Ul ‘haxamod Prsoadl LZ0L
19 K0P T 3y wul eaaL wieabul o A1 0 1o otteidivod Sz P Buuoi

*n £q (9i0p) Praikl (101 Aouuiierd] vomkipars wmsbuy 10 inaeuss o jord Wy
DUIETIH 40 ALNAOO
SO 10 Avis
Aoynes Ky wlon
‘9 Ll

T o hop 2 UL G e ‘whsbiay o semsue)
ARy pue mivy wi 4G paacicdo (1oig Amuuamid) LomMPGNS BB (o \emwes o loid Myl

UIETVH 30 ALNNOD
Snai 40 2viS

DIGOPHNG WON 20 ¥ X208 YLL P £F FIOT T

SYXIL 'ALNNOD OMIETDI
FTHASONIN 30 ALID] 'y 4604 UG UMDY ¥R{GD} BAMND PLD BUIT
T s Fibon “UMOYE GTMBIT Bl B0 Assdod

0 U oS XIDD MONI NYENN_ PockuOV dod 3psoid Pal WM Poy Uek U B/S

<

000Z=,1 4 NOLVIOT
! XN

“

<

"(890AYN) BI61 jo WAIDQ 0GR LOIPWY GHON 3Y) Uo Prsoq
oy weiy puotoy posly pieds 0 U1 jou
9 UD €094 M “sbxa) "Basgert 1o Ajuncg
3 "{myis} dom B0y eOUDINSW PoSld W) 4O
X, w0z u dpuauna 5 Apsedord epn Kue Supyord oiydosd Aq dopy poots Bunsp
st ‘00010z 420d3 {L10Z)Ee61 Jo waing
50 1201} S3¥ L5'PS D o pamwiGItwed BuRQ 1901 UTY BYRG ¥ UBJIIUY GHON SY) UO PASDY B0 PUD ‘GOZH SUOZ \InoS SoMey ‘CREL o WaAlsls
S|DWPION] EOX] B} O] PRILEIEI GA UOSIY UNOYE EIDUCISG Pud EBiER PUD 2
aIMA manQ.ﬁMN 1e JosI9uog (uononpag Wans Eepnisis) ‘PUST jo BRIV 99RS SUIIUSD oMo punsd Dof

Jorwrd RN T RIS

“soxa) :_:_ou B13qupi Jo $p1030Y 3N 10910

-




“sD¥v) ‘Aunoo Bieqel JO SO SGNG K

10
) JO "ZBIZEE JSGWNN WWAINGOQ Ui PIPICORI ‘UONDAIIERY IDISLIN ik
PasQ AUOLDM [0:9099 D Uj PIGUIIP 5O ‘OML 1304 PUD GUQ 150J] PANDD
pup tosa] “Gunod Biaqoiy jo Sbuswoay Auadosg Day LYZICE SN
WIUNI00 W pIpIeDas ‘US] LOPUIA UMK P3) AWOLGH D Ui POQUIIID
S0 B0 v TERS O 0 petiliodiwos Bured 10N oY 99RC ¥

SI[TASSULY] JU Jo5IoUIOS
Jo el d

SR

LISYINOS, s %1
e o e e e BB 3¢ -
et me
mw ,,,,,,,,,,
w3t % glong 3
S s ]
itk et
FHAE =S sisEs
B Fen B
S H . FiE
= g .
vew 4 NP
=N 2 e
e B e
3 e i
3 g
g
g

131§

SLTYI M Y0908 S

YIRS

; I
L. .. l33uLS YSQuOOMOd

§ 9 A e

AT R

nusny suon3 Aiig

20.50 N
aes s baou m
W7 e’ 2]

Suanan |

5157 10w

WoR

30

FLRr 3 10,1000 §
RS W0,

]

|
w

T T}

SOZVAYD, JYUINIO




“SosL o3 G13gopi Jo EpsIOY NG EISHIO

WHUNODY Ul PIPIEDIL U] TIOPUSA UiA PIeQ AWUOLDM D Ul PaQUISIP
BB 30u) 23Y (5¥§ B 40 pesnuaidwod Buieq 1a0iL 213¥ 998G ¥

SITIASSULY] I JoSIotIOS
Joaurg

pooy Junsl

Veasy el S @ ey don
£

Easmy 1 5004 o

32 bg v 1A
Ve bena
e

|Rp——

RIEH N

“HANA

Ly :V"J




